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At JK Fenner, our customer-centric focus has helped us achieve
new heights of excellence and innovation this year. We have
retained our position as the market leaders in the rubber belt
and oil seals industry despite going through tough times.
Global turbulence created challenging conditions, yet with a
great deal of determination, planning and management, we
got through this victoriously. We also take pride in having
introduced new products in the automotive and industrial
products segment.

Chairman’s Message
The year gone by has been a year of
consolidation. With a number of changes
in the Indian economy and policy initiatives
taken by the Government, the Industrial as
well as the automotive sectors have started
showing some early positive signs.
Government’s thrust on infrastructure
development and high focus on road sector,
augurs well for the automotive sector. The
roll out of GST should reduce the logistic
cost and improve the business low. Global
markets however continued to be uncertain.
JK Fenner faced these challenges with
customer focused initiatives and new product launches in both domestic and export markets.
The productivity improvement and cost compression efforts on the part of the Company
coupled with softening prices of raw materials helped it in sustaining growth.
The Company has been continuously upgrading its R&D facilities and capabilities to be at
the fore front of technology. Many innovative products in Transmission belts, Oil seals and
Engineering products have been successfully developed to fulill the needs of the customers
in India and abroad.
With its focus on technology and innovation, the Company is fully prepared to meet emerging
opportunities and achieve higher growth in the coming years.
I would like to thank our shareholders, other stakeholders and above all our committed
employees for their continued support in our growth endeavours.
Raghupati Singhania
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Managing Director’s Message
During the year various structural changes
were initiated in the Indian economy.
Global economy also continued to
reel under a number of political and
economic uncertainties. Inspite of these
headwinds, your Company’s revenue
grew moderately. Speciic initiatives
to penetrate the markets deeper and
launch of innovative products to cater
to the needs of the customers have
aided the growth. The Company has also
continued to introduce new products for
automotive and Industrial applications in
Belts, Oil Seals and Engineering products.
Cost control on all fronts helped it to
sustain and improve its proits. Low cost
automation and implementation of best
manufacturing practices have also helped the Company in improving internal eficiencies.
Various plants of the Company also won awards and recognitions from ACMA and other
key customers.
The Research and Development activities of the Company are being further enhanced by
setting up of modern testing facilities and by strengthening its design capabilities. These
initiatives have helped the Company to add value to the customers in India as well as
abroad. Extensive exposure to best practices and innovative products and applications are
part of continuous learning for the teams.
With the series of new customer programmes across sectors as well as continued expansion
of the distribution network, the Company is positioned to consolidate its market leadership
and move ahead in the coming years.
With these steps taken by the Company, I am sure, the Company is well positioned to
consolidate its market leadership and march ahead in the coming years.
Vikrampati Singhania
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Excellence in Quality Award
from BOSCH, Bengaluru

Special Appreciation Award
from KOEL, Pune
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Directors’ Report

Against these challenges, your Company took many initiatives
in the Industrial, Auto and Auto after market segments. These
initiatives were focussed to increase our presence with all the

TO THE MEMBERS

customers and to enhance our share of business both with
domestic as well as overseas customers.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company

Your Company introduced many new products for changing
application needs both in Auto and Industrial segments. This

for the inancial year ended 31st March 2017.

helped the Company aggressively combat competition as well
FINANCIAL RESULTS
Sales
Other Income
Operating Proit (PBIDT)

(` in Crores)
643.81

as stay ahead. Due to these new product developments, your
Company has won a number of programmes with automotive
OE customers to support their domestic and global launches.

33.70
146.17

Proit after Tax

56.77

Surplus brought forward

33.00

Amount available for appropriation

89.77

Transfer to General Reserve

31.77

ACMA Award - Best Drive in Hospital Clean Inside & Garden Green Outside.

DIVIDEND
Your Directors are pleased to recommend a inal dividend of
`15/- per Equity share of `10/- each (i.e.150%) on the equity
Share Capital of `2.48 Crores, which together with the interim
dividend of `30/- per Equity share aggregates to `45/- per share
(i.e.450%) for the inancial year ended 31st March 2017. The total
Dividend outgo will be `13.45 Crores (inclusive of a Dividend Tax
of `2.27 Crores).
OPERATIONS
The Global economy saw subdued growth owing to a number of
uncertainties, both politically and economically. Political changes
in Europe, UK and US as well as reversal in a number of global
trade treaties and increasing tariff and non-tariff trade barriers
negatively impacted global trade.
Inspite of these crosswinds, the Indian economy had a modest

The Company continues to focus on journey towards

growth rate of 7.1% with majority of the growth coming from

manufacturing excellence across all its plants. This has helped

the services sector. The short-term impact of demonetisation

to eliminate many non-value added activities and to improve

was also felt on consumer demand, both in urban and rural

our Eficiency, Quality, Delivery and Cost. Your Company has

economies.

actively been a part of ACMA clusters and has been bench
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marking against other players in similar industries. In this process,

parameters. The Company took advantage of this drive and has

your Company won many awards from customers and ACMA

developed many next generation products with Key Customers,

including a special award for one of the plants as “Hospital Clean

which has helped to retain the business share and loyalty

Inside and Garden Green Outside”. While these awards and

of the customers. Continued focus towards operational and

recognitions are not the end goal but they help to strengthen

design improvements and better manufacturing practices have

the enthusiasm of our teams and encourage them to plan for the

led us to a number of new approvals during various customer

next level of improvement and excellence.

audits. Some of the customers have given the Company a

In order to serve the customer better your Company took an
initiative to enhance “Reach and Range”. Gaps in the product
portfolio are continuously being addressed by product
development teams while gaps in market coverage are being
addressed by our marketing teams. Through this, your Company’s
presence across India has increased and this program helped us
grow even during tough times. All these initiatives helped the
Company achieve improved inancial performance.
During the year ended 31st March 2017, J.K.Fenner achieved a
turnover of `643.81 Crores, an increase of 6% over the previous

preferred vendor status. This status will help the Company to get
businesses in all their new programs thus driving growth even
for the future. Your Company is working with some of the Global
tier-1 customers to double the life of oil seals. This will help the
vehicle manufacturers to increase time between two services,
thus enhancing the availability of the vehicles for usage. The
success of delivering Zero PPM seals to railway bearings to the
Global OEM has helped us to work with this customer in many of
their future Global Projects.
ENGINEERING PRODUCTS

year revenue of `607.30 Crores. Operating proit increased by

In order to encash Government’s push in enhancing Infrastructure

11% to `146.17 Crores from `132.06 Crores and proit after tax

Projects, your Company developed a new range of products for

increased by 17.10% to `56.77 Crores from `48.48 Crores.

this Industry, which will aide revenue growth.

BELTS

New products developed and launched for aqua culture has been

Belts account for a signiicant sales revenue in the products

well accepted by the farmers as it is helping them reduce their

portfolio of J.K.Fenner. We have been the leader in both Auto
after market and Industrial market segments. This leadership
position adds challenges to retain and grow market shares. To
continue to enhance the market leadership and increase our
market share, J.K.Fenner not only launched new products but also
enhanced its offering by better and more value-added products

cost through energy savings. With this success, your Company is
in the process of enhancing the range of the products, which will
enable us to increase the penetration in the entire aqua culture
industry. The Company also has taken certain initiatives in
upgrading the products which will improve ease of maintenance
by the farmers.

for the customers. Speciic products to enhance the eficiency of

In addition to the above, the Company has planned series of

customer application were also developed and launched. Look

manufacturing improvement steps which will enhance the

and feel of packaging of the products was also improved.

reliability of performance of aerator drives, gear boxes, couplings

This new positioning has helped us to gain market share in
Auto after market while retaining our top position in Industrial

and pulleys.
EXPORTS

segment.
OIL SEALS

Exports are an important part of the future growth agenda for
your Company. As a strategy, it has been focusing on select

Awareness towards environment is increasing with both

markets and targeting to win business from the leaders in each

vehicle manufacturers and Government, especially for Noise,

segment. After the initial success with one such leader in the

Pollution and Vibration in vehicles. Oil seals are part of all these

US, the products of the Company are under various stages of

parameters and hence vehicle manufacturers are working closely

evaluation and testing with large players in other segments. The

with oil seals manufacturers to enhance performance in all these

products of the Company have also received good response
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from global OEMs and institutional aftermarket distributors in

bodies. Some of the accolades and awards received during the

Western Europe for both our industrial and agricultural products.

year are as follows:

This has encouraged us to work in the Auto after market. A

a.

National Safety Awards instituted by Government of India
(Ministry of Labour & Employment, Directorate General
Factory Advice Services & Labour Institutes).

b.

Hyderabad Plant received 7 awards under various
categories during the culmination of ACMA -ACT Advance
Cluster 5.

c.

Hyderabad Unit received a Certiicate of Appreciation for
Good Practices in the Manufacturing Sector from FICCI for
the robustness of Quality System and adoption of Best
Practices.

d.

Madurai Unit received ACMA HR Excellence Award in
Bronze category during the year under review.

e.

Nilakottai unit received special award for “Hospital Clean
Inside and Garden Green Outside” from ACMA.

f.

Best case study presentation in the International

number of products are being developed and are under testing
to meet speciic customer requirements. Your Company is also
enhancing its logistics and distribution reach in these new
markets.
HOSE
The young hose business is growing as per plan with approvals
coming in for new products from select number of global OEMs.
Initial supplies have been well accepted with enhanced repeat
orders in the pipeline. The modern manufacturing capability has
helped us to introduce many products to the Auto after market.

conference on Robust Quality Engineering.
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Your Company is making continuous efforts in acquisition,
development, assimilation and utilisation of technological
knowledge through its in-house R&D and technological
innovation measures. This helped your Company to create a
market backed by innovation, excellence and capability.
The Company has developed special products to reduce emission
and friction. For the Railways, we have developed low torque /
zero torque sealing solutions to enhance eficiency.

Excellence in HR award by ACMA

In order to meet the future needs of the customers, we have
created Cross Functional teams between R&D, Customer and
Academia to work on speciic projects.
HUMAN RESOURCE
Human capital is the most important resources to achieve
the goals of the Company. In order to upgrade quality of this
resource, the Company has invested in many programmes in

National Safety Award

technology, manufacturing excellence, safety, environment

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

and other best practices. Our commitment towards Safety &

An extract of the Annual Return, as on 31st March 2017, in the

Environment, Quality & Operational Excellence and HR practices

prescribed form MGT-9, is attached as Annexure ‘A’ with this

continue to garner appreciation from various industry and social

Report and forms a part of it.
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ACMA Awards

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
The particulars of loans, guarantees, securities and investments
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013, are furnished in the inancial statements.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the inancial year ended 31st March 2017, all contracts or
arrangements or transactions entered into by the Company with
related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm’s length basis and were in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further, the Company did not enter into any contract or
arrangement or transaction with related parties that could be
considered material. In view of the above, disclosure in Form
AOC-2 is not applicable.
DIRECTORS
Smt. Mamta Singhania retires by rotation and, being eligible,
offers herself for re-appointment at the ensuing AGM.
Declarations have been received from all the Independent
Directors of the Company that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the

ACT 3rd Case Study Competition Zero Effect Activities

Companies Act, 2013.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ETC.
The details, as required under Section 134(3)(m) read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are annexed to this Report as
Annexure ‘B’ and forms a part of it.
DEPOSITS
Pursuant to the approval of members by means of Special
Resolution dated 25th September 2015, the Company has
continued to accept deposits from the public, in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.
The particulars in respect of the Deposits covered under Chapter
V of the said Act, for the inancial year ended 31st March 2017
are (a) accepted during the year: `19.95 Crores; (b) remained
unclaimed as at the end of the year: `0.16 Crore; (c) defaulted
in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon at
the beginning of the year and at the end of the year- NIL and

Best Drive in Hospital Clean Inside & Garden Green Outside.

(d) details of deposits which are not in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter V of the said Act - NIL.
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The observations of the existing Auditors, M/s. S.S. Kothari

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared
by the Company in accordance with the applicable accounting

Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants in their report on Accounts
and the Financial Statements, read with relevant notes for the

standards. The audited consolidated inancial statements,

inancial year ended 31st March 2017, are self-explanatory.

together with Auditors’ Report, form a part of the Annual Report.

(b) Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report

A report on the performance and inancial position of each of the

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,

subsidiaries and associates included in the consolidated inancial
statements is presented in a separate section in this Annual
Report. Please refer to Form AOC-1 annexed to the inancial
statements in the Annual Report.

2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors
appointed M/s. R.Sridharan & Associates, a irm of Company
Secretaries in Practice as Secretarial Auditors to carry out

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the Company

the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the inancial year

has placed the separate audited accounts of its subsidiaries on

2016-17. The Report, given by them for the said inancial year in

the website of the Company.

the prescribed format, is annexed to this Report as Annexure ‘C’.

During the inancial year under review, no Company has become

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualiication,

or ceased to be Company’s subsidiary or joint venture.

reservation or adverse remark.

AUDITORS

(c)

(a) Statutory Auditors and their Report

The Cost Audit for the inancial year ended 31st March 2016

The Company’s Auditors, M/s. S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered

was conducted by M/s. S.Jagadeesan & Co., Cost Accountants,

Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the

Chennai and as required Cost Audit Report was duly iled with

Company for a term of 3 (three) consecutive years to hold ofice

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India. During the

from the conclusion of the 21st Annual General Meeting (AGM)

year under review, the Board of Directors at their meeting held

th

Cost Auditor and Cost Audit Report

held in the year 2014 till the conclusion of its 24 AGM to be held

on 12th May 2016 appointed M/s. M.Indumathi & Associates,

in the year 2017, being the maximum permissible term under the

Cost Accountants to audit the Cost Accounts of the Company for

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

the inancial year 2016-17. The Audit of the cost accounts of the

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the term of

Company for the inancial year 2016-17 is being conducted by

M/s. S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co., will end at the forthcoming
AGM and the said irm, will therefore, not be eligible for reappointment as the Auditors of the Company at the same AGM.

the said Cost Auditors in terms of the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 and the report will be iled
with Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 12th May 2017
appointed M/s. Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a term of ive years to hold ofice
from the conclusion of the 24th AGM to be held in the year 2017
until the conclusion of the 29th AGM to be held in the year 2022,
subject to the approval of the Members at the AGM to be held
in 2017 and further subject to ratiication of the appointment by
the members at the respective AGMs to be held in subsequent
years. Accordingly, the matter relating to appointment of
M/s. Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory
Auditors will be placed for approval of the members at the
forthcoming AGM.
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Vocational Skills – Tailoring Training

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Over the years, your Company continues to play the role of a
responsible corporate citizen and every member understands
his/her social responsibility. It has been involved in a number
of projects in the ields of environment, conservation of natural
resources, health, education, rural development, among others.
Your Company has framed its CSR policy in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder. The contents of the CSR policy are disclosed on the
website of your Company.
Tree Planting drive at Sellur

Your Company continued its mission of “Swachh Bharat” by
constructing 745 Individual Household toilets in Rural areas in
Tamilnadu and Telangana. In addition, your Company has also
constructed 7 toilets for girls in various Government schools.

Your Company has also been involved in supporting vocational
skills for rural women apart from running various eye and
Regeneration of Water body at Vadivelkarai

healthcare camps.

The annual report on the CSR activities undertaken by your
Company during the inancial year under review, in the prescribed
format is annexed to this Report as Annexure ‘D’.

Providing Safe Drinking Water

During the year, your Company had undertaken projects for
providing safe drinking water at the drought affected villages
Vellaiparaipatti and Azhagusirai in Madurai District in Tamilnadu
by providing bore-wells and integrated RO water plants. Your
Company had also undertaken a pilot project on revamping
a water reservoir at Madurai for conserving the existing water
resources.

Eye Checkup Camp in Chennai
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Attendance and other details as on 31st March, 2017 are as given
below:

The Company has in place adequate budgetary control system

Category

Number of Board
Meetings Attended

Dr. Raghupati Singhania,
Chairman

NED

4

Shri H V Lodha

NED

2

Shri Harsh Pati Singhania

NED

4

Shri Rahul C. Kirloskar

IND

2

Shri Bakul Jain

IND

3

Smt. Mamta Singhania

NED

3

Shri Surendra Malhotra

IND

3

procedures are also adequate for orderly and eficient conduct

Shri Vikrampati Singhania,
Managing Director

ED

4

of business of your Company.

Shri Nagaraju Srirama,
President & Director

ED

4

and internal inancial controls with reference to inancial
statements. No reportable material weaknesses were observed
in the system during the previous iscal. Further, the Company
has in place adequate internal inancial control systems and

Name of the Director

procedures which ensure accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records and the same are adequate for safeguarding
of its assets and for prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, commensurate with the size and nature of operation
of the Company. The existing internal control systems and

The Company also has a robust Management Information

AUDIT COMMITTEE

System (MIS) which are backbone of the Company for ensuring

Audit Committee consists of three members, all being Nonexecutive Independent Directors. Three meetings of the Audit
Committee were held during the inancial year ended 31st March
2017. Dates of the meetings and the number of Members
attended are:

that your Company’s assets and interests are safeguarded.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

During the inancial year under review, there were no signiicant
and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals that could impact the going concern status of the
Company and its future operations.
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board consists of 9 Directors as on 31st March 2017, of which

Number of members
attended

Date of the meeting
12th May 2016

3

8th November 2016

3

10th February 2017

2

The names of the Members of the Committee and their
attendance are as follows:
Name

Status

Number of Meetings

Attended

Shri Bakul Jain

Chairman

3

Shri Rahul C. Kirloskar

Member

2

Shri Surendra Malhotra

Member

3

two are Executive Directors (ED) and seven are Non-Executive
Directors (NED); out of seven NED, three are Independent
Directors (IND). Four Board Meetings were held during the
twelve months period from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017
i.e., on 12th May 2016, 10th August 2016, 8th November 2016 and
10th February 2017.
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All the Committee Meetings were attended by the President &
Director, the Company Secretary who is also internal auditor
of the Company. The Head of Finance Function also regularly
attends the Committee Meetings. The Company Secretary acts
as the Secretary of the Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The names of the Members of the Committee and their

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the

attendance are as follows:

Rules thereto, your Company has established a vigil mechanism
for the directors and employees to report their genuine concerns

Name

Status

Number of Meetings
Attended

Shri Surendra Malhotra

Chairman

1

Shri Nagaraju Srirama

Member

2

Shri V. Rengaswamy

Member

2

or grievances relating to actual or suspected fraud, unethical
behaviour, violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or
Ethics policy, and any other event which would adversely affect
the interests of the business of the Company. Whistle Blowers
may send their concerns/complaints to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee in a sealed envelope marked conidential, for
appropriate action.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The details of establishment of such Mechanism have been also

The Company has a “Nomination and Remuneration

disclosed on the website of the Company. It is afirmed that no

and prevention of sexual harassment and has set up Internal

Committee” comprising of four Directors, of which, three
Directors are Non-executive Independent Directors and
the Chairman of the Committee is Non-executive NonIndependent Director. The composition and the role of
the Committee are in conformity with the provisions of
section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has formulated a policy
relating to the appointment, remuneration and removal of
Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other
Senior Management Personnel of the Company.

Complaints Committee (ICC) at its work places to redress the

The policy is appended herewith as “Annexure E”. Dates of

complaints of women employees.

the meetings and number of Members attended are:

personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE
Your Company is sensitive to women employees at workplace.
As required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,
the Company has a formal policy to ensure safety of women

During the year, no complaint has been iled with ICC with
allegation of sexual harassment.
STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The

Stakeholders’

Relationship

Committee,

consists

of

Date of the meeting

Number of members attended

12th May 2016

4

10th February 2017

3

three members viz., Shri Surendra Malhotra, Non-Executive
Independent Director and Chairman of the Committee,
Shri

Nagaraju

Srirama,

President

&

Director

and

The names of the Members of the Committee and their
attendance are as follows:

Shri V. Rengaswamy, Vice President (Finance & Accounts).
During the year under review, the Stakeholders’ Relationship

Name

Status

Committee meeting held twice i.e., on 10th August 2016 and on
10th February 2017.

Shri Harsh Pati Singhania

Dates of the meetings and number of Members attended are:
Date of the meeting

Number of members attended

10th August 2016

2

10th February 2017

3

Number of
Meetings
Attended

Chairman

2

Shri Rahul C. Kirloskar

Member

1

Shri Bakul Jain

Member

2

Shri Surendra Malhotra

Member

2
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

b)

the accounting policies have been selected and applied
consistently and judgments and estimates made are

The Company has a ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view

of Directors’ which comprises of three Directors out of which one

of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the

is Independent and two are Executive Directors. The composition

inancial year and of the proit and loss of the Company

and the role of the Committee are in conformity with the

for that period;

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Three
meetings of the Committee were held during the inancial year

c)

proper and suficient care has been taken for the

ended 31st March 2017 i.e., on 12th May 2016, 10th August 2016

maintenance

and 10th February 2017. Shri Vikrampati Singhania (Chairman of

accordance with the provisions of the said Act for

the Committee) and Shri Nagaraju Srirama (member) attended

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for

all the three meetings and Shri Surendra Malhotra (member)

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

attended two meetings.

d)

Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of the Independent
Directors of the Company was held on 10th February 2017. Shri
Bakul Jain was unanimously elected as Chairman of the meeting

adequate

accounting

records

in

the annual accounts have been prepared on a going
concern basis; and

SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV to the

of

e)

the proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws have been devised
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

and two Independent Directors were present at the said meeting.

RISK MANAGEMENT

RECLASSIFICATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has an elaborate risk management system to
inform Board Members about risk assessment and minimization

Pursuant to the approval of the members, granted at the Extra-

procedures. A Risk Management Committee headed by a

ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 18 April 2017, the

Whole-time Director evaluates the eficacy of the framework

authorised share capital of the Company has been reclassiied

relating to risk identiication and its mitigation. Board Members

into 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each and 80,00,000

are accordingly informed.

th

Preference Shares of `100/- each. The Company has also since
issued 70,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

of `100/- each for cash at par on private placement basis

The Board places on record its appreciation of the valued services

aggregating to `70 Crores, as per approval of members granted

and dedicated efforts of the employees of the Company, as also

at the said EGM.

the co-operation and support extended by Company’s bankers,
customers, shareholders, dealers, vendors, various Government

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

agencies and other stakeholders.

As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act 2013,
your Directors state that:
a)

in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;
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On Behalf of the Board
Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th May 2017

Dr.Raghupati Singhania
Chairman

Annexure-A to the Directors’ Report
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2017
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
1
2
3
4

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company
Address of the Registered ofice and contact details

:
:
:
:

5
6
7

Category/Sub-Category of the Company
Whether listed company Yes / No
Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any.

:
:
:

U24231TN1992PLC062306
09.04.1992
J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Madurai 625 016
email: vijayaraghavan@jkfenner.com
website: www.jkfennerindia.com
Tel No. 0452-4283826
Fax No. 0452-4283831
Company limited by Shares / Non-Govt. Company
No
M/s. Alankit Assignments Limited
Alankit House, 4E/2, Jhandewalan Extension,
New Delhi - 110055.
Tel No. 11-42541234, 23541234
Fax No. 011-23552001
email: info@alankit.com;
website: www.alankit.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:Sl.
No.

Name and Description of main products / services

1

Power Transmission Products

2

Oilseals, Moulded Rubber Products and Rubber
Compounds, Rubber Scrap

3

Engineering Products & Services

NIC Code of the Product/ service

% to total turnover
of the company

4010

60.7

4016; 4005; 4004

22.6

8483; 8482; 8409; 8708

15.4

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES : S.No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
COMPANY

CIN / GLN

Holding / Subsidiary/
Associate Company

%of shares
held

Applicable
section

1

BENGAL & ASSAM COMPANY LIMITED
Patriot House, 3, Bahadur Shah Zafar
Marg, New Delhi 110 002

L67120DL1947PLC116830

HOLDING COMPANY

88.17

2(46)

2

SOUTHERN SPINNERS AND
PROCESSORS LIMITED
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road,
Madurai 625 016

U17111TN2005PLC056558

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

100.00

2(87)

3

MODERN COTTON YARN SPINNERS
LIMITED
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road,
Madurai 625 016

U17111TN2005PLC057274

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

100.00

2(87)
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NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
COMPANY

CIN/GLN

Holding / Subsidiary/
Associate Company

% of shares held

Applicable
Section

4

BMF INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Patriot House, 4th Floor, 3 Bahadur
Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi 110 002

U67120DL2005PLC161088

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

100.00

2(87)

5

ACORN ENGINEERING LIMITED
Delite Theatre Building, 2nd Floor,
Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi 110 002

U74210DL1978PLC009175

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

100.00

2(87)

6

DIVYASHREE COMPANY PRIVATE
LIMITED
Patriot House, 3 Bahadur Shah Zafar
Marg, New Delhi 110 002

U10100DL2008PTC178373

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

61.00

2(87)

7

DWARKESH ENERGY LIMITED
Gulab Bhawan, 3rd Floor, 6A, Bahadur
Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi 110 002

U31200DL2005PLC278945

ASSOCIATE COMPANY

33.16

2(6)

8

PSV ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Patriot House, 4th Floor, 3 Bahadur
Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi 110 002

U40300DL2013PTC258991

ASSOCIATE COMPANY

26.00

2(6)

S.No.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
(as on 1st April 2016)
Demat

Physical

Total

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(as on 31st March 2017)

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a. Individual/HUF

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b. Central Govt.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c. State Govt (s)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d. Bodies Corp.

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e. Banks / FI
f. Any Other….

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

-

a) NRIs Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Other –
Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c) Bodies Corp.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e) Any Other….

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-total (A) (2):-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

-

1. Institutions

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-total (B)(1):-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-total (A) (1):(2) Foreign

Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public
Shareholding
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Category of
Shareholders
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
`1 lakh
ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of `1 lakh
c) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(2):Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C)

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year (as on 1st April 2016)
Demat
Physical
Total
% of Total
Shares

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(as on 31st March 2017)
Demat
Physical
Total
% of Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

-

57401
154200

57401
154200

2.31
6.21

-

57401
154200

57401
154200

2.31
6.21

-

2666

59335

62001

2.50

2666

59335

62001

2.50

-

2666

20150
291086

20150
293752

0.81
11.83

2666

20150
291086

20150
293752

0.81
11.83

-

2666

291086

293752

11.83

2666

291086

293752

11.83

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2191980

291086

2483066

100.00

2191980

291086

2483066

100.00

-

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

1

Bengal & Assam
Company Ltd.
Total

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
(as on 1st April 2016)
%of Shares
% of total
No. of
Pledged /
Shares of the
Shares
encumbered to
company
total shares

Share holding at the end of the year
(as on 31st March 2017)
% of Shares
% of total
Pledged /
No. of Shares Shares of the
encumbered to
company
total shares

% change in
share holding
during the
year

2189314

88.17

-

2189314

88.17

-

-

2189314

88.17

-

2189314

88.17

-

-

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sl.
No.

Cumulative Shareholding

of the year

during the year

No. of shares

1.

At the beginning of the year

2.

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

3.

Shareholding at the beginning
% of total shares of
the company

No. of shares

% of total shares of
the company

There is no change in the Promoter’s Shareholding during the FY 2016-17.

At the end of the year
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)
Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (as on 01.04.2016)

Sl.
No.

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders
No. of
shares

1

Henry F. Cockill & Sons Ltd.

2

Accurate Finman Services Limited

3

Hari Shankar Singhania Holdings Private Limited

4

KOR Investments Ltd.

5

% of total shares of
the company

154200

No. of
shares

% of total shares of
the company

6.21

154200

6.21

-

-

23796

0.96

20150

0.81

20150

0.81

13333

0.54

13333

0.54

Shri Bharat Hari Singhania

6721

0.27

6721

0.27

6

Smt.Vinita Singhania

6721

0.27

6721

0.27

7

Shri Anshuman Singhania

6715

0.27

6715

0.27

8

Shri Shrivats Singhania

6715

0.27

6715

0.27

9

Mr.Sunil K. Mittal (Jt.) Mrs.Kadambari S. Mittal

4033

0.16

4033

0.16

10

Mrs.Kadambari S. Mittal (Jt.) Mr.Sunil K. Mittal

3133

0.13

3133

0.13

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl.
No.

For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
(as on 01.04.2016)
% of total shares of
the company

No. of shares

1

Dr.Raghupati Singhania

2
3
4

Shri Nagaraju Srirama

Cumulative Shareholding during the year
% of total shares of
the company

No. of shares

20150

0.81

20150

0.81

Shri Harsh Pati Singhania

6715

0.27

6715

0.27

Shri Vikrampati Singhania

6715

0.27

6715

0.27

1

-

1

-

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(` in lacs)
Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the inancial year
i) Principal Amount

18,178.62

1,804.47

2,872.21

ii) Interest due but not paid

-

-

-

-

iii) Interest accrued but not due

-

3.30

-

3.30

18,178.62

1,807.77

2,872.21

22,858.60
5,888.29

Total (i+ii+iii)

22,855.30

Change in Indebtedness during the inancial year
- Addition

3,615.30

277.99

1,995.00

- Reduction

7,047.50

1,299.26

754.89

9,101.65

(3,432.20)

(1,021.27)

1,240.11

(3,213.36)

14,746.42

783.20

4,112.32

19,641.94

-

-

-

-

0.04

2.33

-

2.37

14,746.46

785.53

4,112.32

19,644.31

Net Change ( Principal amount Only)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl.
No.
1

(` in lacs)

Name of MD / WTD / Manager

Particulars of
Remuneration

Managing Director
Shri Vikrampati Singhania

Total
Amount

Whole-time Director
Shri Nagaraju Srirama

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income tax Act, 1961

400.45

169.78

570.23

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income tax Act, 1961

36.17

0.72

36.89

(c) Proits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of the
Income tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

2

Commission - as % of proit and others

266.00

-

266.00

3

Others (mainly contribution to Provident and
Superannuation Funds)

38.45

7.37

45.82

741.07

177.87

918.94

Total (A)

` 919.60 lacs (being 10% of the net proits of the Company calculated as per
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other Directors:

(` in lacs)

Particulars of Remuneration
1. Independent Directors

Name of Directors
Shri Surendra
Malhotra

Shri Rahul C. Kirloskar

Total
Amount

Shri Bakul Jain

- Fee for attending board meetings

0.90

0.60

0.90

2.40

- Fee for attending Committee meetings

1.50

0.50

0.90

2.90

- Commission

0.70

0.70

0.70

2.10

Total (1)

3.10

1.80

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Dr.Raghupati
Singhania

Shri
H.V.Lodha

2.50

Shri Harsh Pati
Singhania

7.40

Smt. Mamta
Singhania

Total
Amount

- Fee for attending board meetings

1.20

0.60

1.20

0.90

3.90

- Fee for attending Committee meetings

0.30

-

0.20

-

0.50

- Commission

58.00

0.70

29.00

0.70

88.40

Total (2)

59.50

1.30

30.40

1.60

92.80

Total (B)=(1+2)

100.20

*1019.14

Total Managerial Remuneration [(A) + (B)]
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

` 1011.56 lacs (being 11% of the net proits of the Company calculated as per Section 198
of the Companies Act, 2013)

* Total Remuneration paid to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and other Directors (being the total A & B), includes sitting fees of ` 9.70 lacs.
C.

Remuneration to key managerial personnel (KMP) other than MD / MANAGER / WTD
Appointment of KMP was not applicable to the company for the inancial year ended 31st March 2017.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the year ended 31st March 2017.

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th May 2017

On Behalf of the Board
Dr.Raghupati Singhania
Chairman
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Annexure B to the Directors’ Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Concept of energy conservation has become a way of life in your Company for several years now and our endeavour to improve upon energy
performance has moved from strength to strength.
(i)

The Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:
During the year, various Energy conservation measures like auto cut off of Machinery, upgradation of compressors, modifying the roof
to improve the natural lighting inside the shop loor were implemented.

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy:
Your Company generated about 16,02,370 units of power from its Solar Power Plants located at Aralvoimozhi, Kanyakumari District in
Tamil Nadu and at Pashamailaram in Telangana. Your Company also generated about 1,30,51,248 units of Power through its Wind
Power Plants located at Aralvoimozhi, Kanyakumari District. Total power generated through Solar and Wind Power Plants were used
for captive consumption.
With this generation, your Company consumed about 60% of its energy requirement through self-generation of alternate energy.
(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:
In total, the Company has spent `111.83 lacs on energy conservation during 2016-17.
(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(i)

The efforts made towards technology absorption:
(a) Introduced new belts for Agriculture Market;
(b) Implemented LEAN manufacturing principles to eliminate non-value added activities in shop loor;
(c) See through layout as per ACMA in Hyderabad Oil Seals plant and Nilakottai Plant.

(ii) The beneits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
Due to introduction of various improvement programmes and adoption of new technologies your Company could derive the following
beneits:(a) Promoted the recyclability of non-biodegradable material through usage of new recyclable material;
(b) Eliminated certain process in Belts and thus eliminated many possible hazards;
(c) Through commissioning of dedicated feeder, the Hyderabad Plant is getting uninterrupted power supply and could reduce the cost
of power by buying through third party sources.
(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the inancial year):
No technology was imported during previous three inancial years.
iv) The expenditure incurred on Research & Development:
(i)

Areas of R&D Activities
Innovation and Technology are critical ingredients to move forward in developing advanced processes & products to meet the emerging
customer needs & expectations.
Maintaining technological excellence through innovation and creativity has been the Company’s focus and key to success.

ii)

Research & Development Expenses
The capital expenditure incurred on R&D during the year was `0.14 Crore and recurring expenditure amounted to `8.43 Crores, with the
total expenditure of `8.57 Crores, 1.33% of the turnover.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Earnings in Foreign Exchange
Foreign Exchange Outgo

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th May 2017
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` in Crores
2016-17
80.19

2015-16
87.47

67.57

71.00

On Behalf of the Board
Dr.Raghupati Singhania
Chairman

Annexure C to the Directors’ Report
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,

J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED,
CIN: U24231TN1992PLC062306
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Madurai – 625016
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices
by J.K. Fenner (India) Limited (CIN:U24231TN1992PLC062306) (hereinafter called “the Company”) having its Registered Ofice at
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Madurai 625 016. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our veriication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns iled and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its oficers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the inancial year ended on
31st March, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns iled and other records maintained by the Company for the inancial
year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the provisions of:
(i)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder and the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable);

(ii) Since the Company is an unlisted Public Company and hence the question of complying with the provisions of the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder does not arise;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and
the rules and regulations made thereunder. There is no Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings during the year under review;
(v) Since the Company is an unlisted Public Company, the provisions of the following Regulations (a to i) and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) does not arise:a)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999;
e)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

i)

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(vi) As per the information furnished to us by the Company no speciic laws/acts are applicable to the company. Based on the information
furnished to us and explanation provided to us we have examined the adequacy of systems and processes in place to monitor and
ensure compliance with labour laws, Economic laws, etc.
With respect to Fiscal laws, based on the information and explanation provided to us by the management and oficers of the Company,
we report that adequate systems are in place to monitor and ensure compliance of iscal laws.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.
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We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clariications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Meetings which are convened at shorter notice and agenda / notes on agenda which are
circulated less than the speciied period, the necessary compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards on Board
Meeting are complied with.
Based on the veriication of the records and minutes, the decisions were carried out with the consent of majority of the Board of Directors /
Committee Members and there were no dissenting members views recorded in the minutes.
We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on basis of the Compliance certiicate(s)
issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the opinion that the
management has adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with all
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period:
The Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 10th February, 2017 approved the following, subject to approval of the
shareholders:
a)

to reclassify the Authorised Share Capital of ` 90,00,00,000/- divided into 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each and 80,00,000
Preference Shares of ` 100/- each.

b) to issue 70,00,000 cumulative redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) of ` 100/- each for cash at par aggregating to ` 70,00,00,000/by way of Private Placement to a group company - JK Tyre & Industries Ltd.
For R.SRIDHARAN & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
CS R.SRIDHARAN
Place : Chennai
CP No. 3239 FCSNo.4775
Date : 12th May 2017
UIN : S2003TN063400
Note: This Report is to be read with letter of even date by Secretarial Auditor, which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part
of this report.

Annexure A to the Secretarial Audit Report
To,
The Members,
J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road
Madurai – 625016
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The veriication was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are relected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed, provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We have not veriied the correctness and appropriateness of inancial records and Books of Account of the company.
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the veriication of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the eficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.
For R.SRIDHARAN & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
CS R.SRIDHARAN
Place : Chennai
CP No. 3239
Date : 12th May 2017
FCS No. 4775
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Annexure D to the Directors’ Report
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES UNDERTATAKEN BY THE COMPANY DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH 2017
1.

Brief outline of Company’s CSR Policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.
The Company has been one of the foremost proponents of inclusive growth and since inception, has been continuing to undertake
projects for overall development and welfare of the society in the areas pertaining to promoting preventive healthcare, education,
livelihood intervention, rural development, environment sustainability and conservation of natural resources, etc.
Now, as required under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has framed a CSR Policy. The details of the
CSR Policy have been posted on the website of the Company and the web-link for the same is http://www.jkfennerindia.com/
companypolicy.aspx.
As mentioned above, various project/programs undertaken by the Company as per the CSR Policy are in the areas of heath care including
sanitation, education including adult literacy and single teacher schools, etc.

2.

The composition of the CSR Committee:
The CSR Committee comprises of the following Directors:
Shri Vikrampati Singhania, Managing Director (Chairman of the Committee), Non-Independent
Shri Surendra Malhotra, Independent
Shri Nagaraju Srirama, Non-Independent.

3.

Average Net Proit of the Company for last three inancial years: `6027.54 Lacs.

4.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item No. 3 above): `120.55 Lacs.

5.

Details of CSR spent during the inancial year:
a.

Total amount to be spent for the inancial year: ` 121 lacs.

b.

Amount unspent: Nil.

c.

Manner in which the amount spent during the inancial year is detailed below:

(1)

Sl.
No

(2)

(3)

(4)

CSR project or
activity
identiied

Sector in which the
project is covered
(Clause no. of
Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013
as amended)

Projects or
programs
(1) Local area or other
(2) Specify the State
and district where
projects or programs
were undertaken

Cl.(i)- Preventive
health care and
promotion of
sanitation and
making available
safe drinking
water.

1

Health Care

2

Hygiene &
Sanitation

3

Safe drinking Water

4

Adult Literacy,
Single Teacher
School
Vocational Skills
(Self Help Groups)

Cl.(ii)- Promoting
education

5

Water harvesting

Cl.(iv)- Ensuring
environmental
sustainability,
ecological balance

6

Tree plantation

(` in Lacs)

Madurai (Tamil Nadu)
& Hyderabad
(Telangana), Chennai
(Tamil Nadu)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Amount spent on the
projects or programs
Sub-heads:
(1) Direct expenditure on
projects or programs
(2) Overheads:
(`in Lacs)

Cumulative expenditure
up to the
reporting period
(`in Lacs)

Amount spent:
Directly/ through implementing
agency

17.51

Hyderabad (Telangana)
& Madurai (Tamil
Nadu)
Sriperumbudur
(Tamil Nadu)

Direct/NGO
97.68

65.00

Hyderabad
(Telangana) & Madurai
(Tamil Nadu)

52.79

Direct

27.38

Direct

30.00
17.08

Madurai (Tamil Nadu)
& Hyderabad
(Telangana)

26.00

Madurai (Tamil Nadu)
Total

6.

(5)
Amount
outlay
(budget) project or
program-wise

4.70

17.08

6.60

1.90
121.00

121.36

Direct/NGO

Direct
NGO

121.36

The CSR Committee conirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of
the Company.

Place : New Delhi

(Shri Nagaraju Srirama)

(Shri Vikrampati Singhania)

th

President & Director

Chairman, CSR Committee

Date: 12 May 2017
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Annexure E to the Directors’ Report
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

(iv)

The Committee will review from time to time board

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,

diversity to bring in professional performance in different

2013, the Company has put in place the Nomination and

areas of operations, transparency, corporate governance,

Remuneration Policy for the Directors and other employees of

inancial management, risk assessment & mitigation

the Company including criteria for determining qualiications,

strategy and human resource management in the

positive attributes, independence of a Director as well as a policy

Company. The Company will keep succession planning

on Board diversity. The Policy provides as follows:

(i)

and board diversity in mind in recommending any new
name of Director for appointment to the Board. It will

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of

be Committee’s endeavour to have at least one Director

Directors (the Committee) shall take into consideration

from the following ields; (a) Accounting and Corporate

the following criteria for recommending to the Board
for appointment as a Director of the Company: (a)

Finance; (b) Legal and Corporate Laws; (c) Business,

Qualiications & experience; (b) Positive attributes like-

Management and Corporate Strategy.

respect for Company’s core values, professional integrity,
strategic capability with business vision, etc.; (c) In case
the proposed appointee is an Independent Director, he

The eligibility criteria for appointment of Key Managerial

should fulil the criteria for appointment as Independent

Personnel

Director as per the applicable laws & regulations; (d) The

personnel shall vary for different positions depending

incumbent should not be disqualiied for appointment as

upon the job description of the relevant position.

Director pursuant to the provisions of the Act or other
applicable laws & regulations.

(ii)

(v)

The Committee will recommend to the Board appropriate
compensation to the Executive Directors subject to

(KMPs)

and

other

senior

management

In

particular, the position of KMPs shall be illed by senior
personnel having relevant qualiications and experience.
The Compensation structure for KMPs and other senior
management personnel shall be as per Company’s

the provisions of the Act, and other applicable laws &

remuneration structure taking into account factors such

regulations. The Committee shall periodically review

as level of experience, qualiication and suitability which

the compensation of such Directors in relation to other

shall be reasonable and suficient to attract, retain and

comparable companies and other factors, the Committee

motivate them. The remuneration would be linked to

deems appropriate. Proposed changes, if any, in the
compensation of such Directors shall be reviewed by the
Committee, subject to approval of the Board.

appropriate performance benchmarks. The remuneration
may consist of ixed and incentive pay relecting short
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company and its goals.

(iii)

The Board will review the performance of a Director as
per the structure of performance evaluation adopted by
the Board of Directors including Executive Directors.
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Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th May 2017

On Behalf of the Board
Dr.Raghupati Singhania
Chairman

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF J. K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

the assessment of the risks of the material misstatement of the

We have audited the accompanying standalone inancial statements
of J. K. Fenner (India) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the statement of proit

inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal inancial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the inancial statements

and loss, the statement of cash lows for the year then ended, and a

that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures

summary of the signiicant accounting policies and other explanatory

that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used

information.

and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial

Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

Statements

of the standalone inancial statements.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suficient

stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

respect to the preparation of these standalone inancial statements

standalone inancial statements.

that give a true and fair view of the inancial position, inancial
performance and cash lows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards speciied under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone inancial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the

Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 as

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the inancial

amended.

position of the Company as at 31st March, 2017, and its proits and

This

responsibility

also

includes

maintenance

of

adequate

its cash lows for the year ended on that date.

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and

of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a

maintenance of adequate internal inancial controls, that were

statement on the matters speciied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the inancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

Order.
2.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief

Auditors’ Responsibility

were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law

inancial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account

have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our

the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards

examination of those books;

and matters which are required to be included in the audit report

c) the balance sheet, the statement of proit and loss, and the

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We

cash low statement dealt with by this Report are in

conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing

agreement with the books of account;

speciied under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
inancial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit
involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and the disclosures in the inancial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone inancial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards speciied under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 as amended.
e) on the basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on 31st March, 2017 taken on record by the
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Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualiied as on
31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal inancial controls
over inancial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF J. K. FENNER (INDIA)LIMITED
Report on the matters speciied in paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 1 of
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section.

“Annexure B”;and
g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the

(i) (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies

particulars including quantitative details and situation of

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the

ixed assets.

best of our information and according to the explanations
(b)

given to us:

The ixed assets are physically veriied by the management

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending

according to a phased program designed to cover all

litigations on its inancial position in its inancial statements

the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion,

– Refer Note 29 to the inancial statements;

is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the

the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, the

applicable law or accounting standards, for material

ixed assets have been physically veriied by the

foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including

management during the year and no material discrepancies

derivative contracts.

were noticed on such veriication, discrepancies have duly

iii.There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to

been adjusted in the inancials.

be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to

iv.The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note

us and on the basis of our examination of the records of

38 in its standalone inancial statements as to holdings as

the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are

well as dealings in Speciied Bank Notes during the period

held in the name of the Company.

from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016. Based on our
audit procedures and relying on the management

(ii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations

representation regarding the holding and nature of cash

given to us, the procedures of physical veriication of inventories

transactions, including speciied bank notes, we report that

followed by the management are reasonable and adequate

these disclosures are in accordance with the books of

in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its

accounts maintained by the company and as produced to us

business. The discrepancies noticed on veriication between

by the management.

the physical stocks and the book records were not material and
have been properly dealt with in the books of account.
(iii) The Company has granted loan to a body corporate covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 12, 2017
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For S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N
Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No: 087294

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, we
are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the
loan had been granted to the body corporate are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company

(b)

The company has granted tenure based loan to the body

presented for bank clearing, since paid and entry tax

corporate listed in the register maintained under section

payable under West Bengal Act, amounting of ` 51.00

189 of the Act, the repayment of the loan is as per tenure

lacs.

only and the borrower has been regular in the payment of
the principal and interest as stipulated.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us
and as per the books and records examined by us, there

(c)

There are no overdue amounts more than 90 days in

are no dues of Customs Duty and Cess which have not been

respect of the loan granted to a body corporate listed in

deposited on account of any dispute, except the following

the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

in respect of disputed Income Tax, Excise Duty, Service Tax
and Sales Tax along with the forum where dispute is

(iv) As per the information and explanation given to us and on

pending:

the basis of our examination of the records, the company has
complied with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans and investment made.
(v) In our opinion and according to explanation given to us, the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions

Name
of the
Statute

Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the dispute is
Dues
(` in
the amount relates
pending
Lacs)

Central Excise
Excise
Duty
Act,1944

58.88

1996-97,1998-99
to 2001-02, April
to December,
2002, 2003-04 and
2005-06

Commissioner Appeals,
Meerut, Uttar Pradesh

Central Excise
Excise
Duty
Act,1944

1.48

2008-09 &
2010-2011

Commissioner Appeals,
Chennai, Tamil Nadu

Central Excise
Excise
Duty
Act,1944

14.81

2010-11 to
2014-15

Commissioner Appeals,
Chennai, Tamil Nadu

Finance Service
Act,1994 Tax

0.02

2015-16

Commissioner Appeals,
Madurai, Tamil Nadu

Service
Tax
Service
Tax
Service
Tax

2.18

Feb.2010 to Dec.
2014.
January, 2013 to
June, 2015
January, 2013 to
June, 2015

Commissioner Appeals,
Madurai, Tamil Nadu
Commissioner Appeals,
Madurai, Tamil Nadu
Commissioner Appeals,
Madurai, Tamil Nadu

November, 2008March,2011

CESTAT, Chennai.
Tamil Nadu

Central Sales Tax 156.11
Sales Tax
Act and
Sales Tax
Act of
Sales Tax 251.79
Various
States

1992-93 to
2005-06

Commercial Tax Oficer,
Tamil Nadu

2000-01 to
2007-08

Dy and Asst. Commissioner
(Appeals), Tamil Nadu

Sales Tax 251.78

1991-92 to
2004-05

Sales Tax Tribunal,
Tamil Nadu

Sales Tax 126.98

1991-92 to
2004-05

Sales Tax Tribunal,
Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh

Assessment Year
2014-15

Commissioner Of Income
Tax (Appeals), Madurai,
Tamil Nadu

of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act and the rules framed thereunder have been
complied with in respect of ixed deposits accepted from the
public. Neither an order has been passed by Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunal, nor is any proceeding
pending before such authority.
(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating to
materials, labour and other items of cost maintained by the
Company as speciied by the Central Government of India
under section 148(1) of the act and are of the opinion that
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether

Service
Tax

they are accurate and complete.
(vii) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us
and the records of the Company examined by us, in
our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and

1.20
2.05

2.32

other material statutory dues as applicable with the
appropriate authorities. Further, there were no undisputed
amounts outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable

except the property tax of ` 4.24 lacs and professional tax
of ` 10.17 lacs, as explained by the management the
amount were remitted to the department but not yet

Income
Tax Act,
1961

Income
Tax

658.88
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and
as per the books and records examined by us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayments of its dues to banks and
inancial institution. The Company has not taken any loans from
Governments or debenture holders.
(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not raised any monies by way
of initial public offer or further public offer during the inancial
year, and the term loans raised by the Company have been
applied for the purpose for which they were obtained, where
such end use has been stipulated by the lender(s).
(x) In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations
given to us, no cases of fraud by the Company or fraud on the
Company by its oficers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.
(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us,
the managerial remuneration has been paid and provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals as mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,.
(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, hence clause (xii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, as applicable and the details
have been disclosed in these inancial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF J. K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section.
We have audited the internal inancial controls over inancial
reporting of J. K. Fenner (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of March
31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone inancial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal inancial controls based on the internal control
over inancial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal inancial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and eficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

(xiv) As the Company has not made any preferential allotment
and private placement of shares or fully & partly convertible
debentures during the year under review, the requirement of
section 42 of the Act, are not applicable.

records, and the timely preparation of reliable inancial information,

(xv) In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors and persons connected with them.
Hence, the provisions of section 192 of Act are not applicable.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal

(xvi) In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations
given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

inancial controls over inancial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal inancial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 12, 2017
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For S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N
Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No: 087294

and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal inancial

controls over inancial reporting was established and maintained

c)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

material effect on the inancial statements.

about the adequacy of the internal inancial controls system over
inancial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Our audit of internal inancial controls over inancial reporting

Reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internal inancial controls
over inancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

Because of the inherent limitations of internal inancial controls over

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating

inancial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the inancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal inancial controls over inancial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suficient

inancial control over inancial reporting may become inadequate

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance

Company’s internal inancial controls system over inancial reporting.

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Opinion
A company’s internal inancial control over inancial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of inancial reporting and the preparation of inancial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company’s internal inancial

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal inancial controls system over inancial reporting and such
internal inancial controls over inancial reporting were operating

control over inancial reporting includes those policies and

effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on “the internal control over

procedures that:

inancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

a)

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly relect the transactions and

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

dispositions of the assets of the company;
b)

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of inancial
statements

in

accordance

with

generally

accepted

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 12, 2017

For S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N
Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No: 087294
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J.K. Fenner (India) Ltd.
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017
Note
No.

As at
31.03.2017

` in lacs
As at
31.03.2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

2
3

248.31
46,268.15
46,516.46

248.31
41,516.81
41,765.12

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Other long term liabilities
Long term provisions

4
5
6
7

11,308.35
1,849.84
9,199.91
203.97
22,562.07

11,439.98
1,795.65
9,763.21
194.68
23,193.52

Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

8
9
10
11

5,487.30
7,880.37
7,751.32
114.69
21,233.68
90,312.21

7,138.44
7,831.74
9,637.66
237.44
24,845.28
89,803.92

28,631.56
160.33
574.07
4.08
29,370.04
13,044.81
23,774.09
1,121.53
67,310.47

29,586.07
182.22
277.32
2.86
30,048.47
35,106.72
1,964.01
1,142.95
68,262.15

5,257.81
11,201.50
430.08
5,967.64
144.71
23,001.74
90,312.21

4,497.36
11,719.51
461.97
4,835.05
27.88
21,541.77
89,803.92

Total
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets under development

12

Non-current investments
Long term loans and advances
Other non-current assets

13
14

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Cash and Bank Balances
Short-term loans and advances
Other current assets

15
16
17
18
19
Total

Signiicant Accounting Policies

1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these inancial statements
Per our report attached
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director

HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017
` in lacs
Note No

2016-17

2015-16

64,381.14

60,729.95

REVENUE:
Revenue from operations (Gross)

20

Less:Excise duty
Revenue from operations (Net)
Other income

21
Total Revenue (I)

6,087.30

5,722.69

58,293.84

55,007.26

3,370.37

2,617.73

61,664.21

57,624.99

21,955.62

19,689.11

3,585.91

3,482.38

EXPENSES:
Cost of materials consumed

22

Purchase of stock-in-trade
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories of inished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

23

(660.03)

(230.39)

Employee beneit expenses

24

9,101.87

8,476.01

25

13,064.07

13,001.69

47,047.44

44,418.80

14,616.77

13,206.19

Other expenses
Total Expenses (II)
Proit before interest & depreciation (I-II)
Finance costs

26

Proit before depreciation
Depreciation and amortization expense

27

Proit before tax

2,819.95

3,235.16

11,796.82

9,971.03

3,640.92

3,330.73

8,155.90

6,640.30

2,424.70

1,792.90

Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax

54.19

(0.41)

5,677.01

4,847.81

Cash

` 377.44

` 329.36

After Tax

` 228.63

` 195.23

5

Net Proit after tax
Basic / Diluted Earnings per equity share
Nominal Value per share ` 10 (2015-16 ` 10)

Signiicant Accounting Policies

1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these inancial statements
Per our report attached
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director

HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a.

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention (except for certain fixed assets which
were revalued) on accrual basis in compliance with applicable Accounting Standards as prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b. Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, adjusted by
revaluation of certain assets and fixed assets held for disposal are stated at realisable value.
c.

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess impairment, if any based on internal
and external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying value of asset exceeds its recoverable value
being higher of value in use and net selling price. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of
profit & loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting
period is reversed if there has been an improvement in recoverable amount.

d. Assets leased out under operating leases are capitalised. Rental income is recognised on the basis of Lease agreement.
e.

Intangible assets are recognised if future economic benefits are likely and cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
The amortizable amount of an intangible asset is allocated on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets.

f.

Specialised software is amortised over a period of five years from the year of installation.

g. Expenditure during construction / erection period is included under capital work in progress and is allocated to the
respective fixed assets on completion of construction / erection.
h. Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided using straight line method over their useful lives and in the manner
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. However, in respect of certain assets, depreciation is provided
as per their useful lives as assessed in Chartered Engineer’s Valuation Report for plant and machinery of one of the
Company’s plants. Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period. Depreciation on the increased amount of assets
due to revaluation is computed on the basis of residual life of the assets as estimated by the valuer on straight line
method.
i.

Long term investments are stated at cost and current investments at lower of cost or fair market value. Diminution in
value of long term investments is accounted for if the decline is other than temporary.

j.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is computed on weighted average basis.
Finished goods and process stock include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

k.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, current account and fixed deposit with banks.

l.

Employee Beneits :
(i)

Deined Contribution Plan - Employee beneits in the form of Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund (PF) and ESI are
considered as deined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Proit and Loss of the year
when the contribution to the respective funds are due.

(ii) Deined Beneit Plan - Retirement beneits in the form of Gratuity and long term compensated absences (Leave
Encashment) are considered as deined beneit obligations and are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation,
using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet.
(iii) Short term employee beneits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of proit and
loss of the year in which the related service is rendered. Actuarial gain / loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of
Proit and Loss.
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m. Transactions denominated in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate on the date of transactions.
Outstanding monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions are translated at exchange rate
prevailing at the end of the year and all exchange gains/ losses adjusted to the statement of proit and loss. Non
monetary foreign currency items are stated at cost. Premium in respect of forward contracts is recognised over the
life of contract. Gain or loss arising on remeasuring derivative instruments identiied as effective fair value hedges and
ineffective cash low hedges is accounted for in the statement of proit and loss.

2

n.

Revenue is recognised when signiicant risks and rewards of ownership have been passed to the buyer.

o.

Revenue expenditure on research & development is charged to statement of proit & loss and capital expenditure is
added to ixed assets.

p.

Borrowing cost is charged to statement of proit and loss except cost of borrowing including net gain / loss on foreign
currency transactions for acquisition of qualifying assets which is capitalised till the date of commercial use of the asset.

q.

Export incentives and beneits are recognised in the statement of proit and loss.

r.

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the current year as per provisions of
IncomeTax Act 1961. Deferred tax is recognised for timing differences. However, deferred tax asset is recognized on the
basis of reasonable / virtual certainty that suficient future taxable income will be available against which the same can
be realised.

s.

Inter-unit transfer of goods for captive consumption are included in respective heads of accounts to relect the true
working. Any unrealised proits on unsold stock is not considered for valuing the inventory. This has no impact on the
proitability.

t.

Government grants of incentives/subsidy are credited to capital reserve account.

u.

Provision in respect of present obligation arising out of past events are made in accounts when reliable estimates can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent liabilities (if material) are disclosed by way of notes to accounts.
Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in inancial statements and are included, if any, in the Directors’
Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at
31.03.2017

` in lacs
As at
31.03.2016

Authorised:
8,00,00,000 (Previous year 8,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each

8,000.00

8,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

9,000.00

9,000.00

248.31

248.31

Aggregate number of Equity shares allotted to shareholders as fully paid up pursuant
to Scheme of amalgamation on 7th November 2007 without payment being received in
cash.

23,13,000

23,13,000

Above includes shares allotted to holding company

20,97,522

20,97,522

21,89,314

21,89,314

1,54,200

1,54,200

10,00,000 (Previous year 10,00,000) preference shares of ` 100/-each
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid (Equity Shares with equal rights)
24,83,066 (Previous year 24,83,066) equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up
a)

b)

Details of each shareholder holding more than 5% shares (Nos.):
Bengal & Assam Company Limited - Holding Company
Henry F. Cockill & Sons Ltd, U.K.

c)

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year

24,83,066

24,83,066

Additions during the year

-

-

Deletions during the year

-

-

24,83,066

24,83,066

Shares outstanding as at the end of the year
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` in lacs

3

RESERVES AND SURPLUS
a) Capital Reserve
b) Capital Redemption Reserve
c) Securities Premium Reserve
d) Revaluation Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Less : Amount transferred (i)
Balance as at the end of the year
e) General Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add : Transferred from surplus in statement of proit and loss during the year
Balance as at the end of the year
f) Surplus in Statement of Proit and Loss
Total Reserves & Surplus (a to f)
Details of surplus in statement of proit and loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Proit for the year
Less: Appropriations:
Interim dividend paid
Proposed inal dividend
Corporate dividend tax
Transfer to general reserve
(i)

As at

As at

31.03.2017

31.03.2016

343.18
77.10
140.00

343.18
77.10
140.00

833.62
29.10
804.52

877.46
43.84
833.62

36,823.24
3,176.76
40,000.00
4,903.35
46,268.15

33,323.24
3,500.00
36,823.24
3,299.67
41,516.81

3,299.67
5,677.01
8,976.68

3,147.28
4,847.81
7,995.09

744.92
151.65
3,176.76
4,903.35

869.07
124.15
202.20
3,500.00
3,299.67

Transfer to Statement of proit and loss ` 25.18 lacs (Previous year ` 42.15 lacs) towards additional depreciation arising out
of revaluation of ixed assets, ` 3.92 lacs (Previous year ` 1.69 lacs) towards assets sold / written off.

Non - Current
4 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Current *

As at

As at

As at

As at

31.03.2017

31.03.2016

31.03.2017

31.03.2016

7,723.18

9,282.31

2,475.09

3,777.04

7,723.18

9,282.31

2,475.09

3,777.04

3,585.17

2,157.67

371.20

499.84

3,585.17

2,157.67

371.20

499.84

-

-

(2,846.29)

(4,276.88)

11,308.35

11,439.98

-

-

SECURED
Term loans
Banks

UNSECURED
Fixed Deposits

Less : Amount disclosed under the head
"Other Current Liabilities" (Note 10)

* Payable during next 12 months
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1

Term loan of ` 4222.86 lacs (Previous year : ` 2500.00 lacs) includes balance Term Loan of ` 2452.00 lacs drawn during the year
from a bank secured by way of irst charge on certain speciied assets including equitable mortgage of speciied immovable
assets of the company and paripassu irst charge on the entire current assets of the company along with the banks extending
working capital facilities, is repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments and balance ` 56.46 lacs as 21st instalment.

2

Term loan of ` 1000.00 lacs (Previous Year : Nil) from a bank secured by way of irst charge on certain specifed movable ixed
assets of the company, repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments.

3

Term loan of ` 4166.80 lacs (Previous Year : ` 5000.00 Lacs) from a bank secured by way of irst charge on certain specifed
movable ixed assets of the company, repayable in 19 equal quarterly instalments and balance ` 209.10 lacs as 20th instalment.

4

Term loan of ` 330.00 lacs (Previous year : ` 880.00 lacs) from a bank secured by way of irst charge on certain assets including
equitable mortgage of speciied immovable assets of the company, is repayable in 3 equal quarterly instalments.

5

Term loan of ` 478.60 lacs (Previous year : ` 1140.11 lacs) from a bank secured by way of irst charge on certain speciied assets
including equitable mortgage of speciied immovable assets of the company and paripassu irst charge on the entire current
assets of the company along with the banks extending working capital facilities, is repayable in 3 equal quarterly instalments.

6

Term loan Nil (Previous Year : ` 3550.00 lacs) from a bank secured by way of irst and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation
of assets acquired out of the bank loan.

7

Fixed Deposit of ` 1883.07 lacs and ` 1702.10 lacs aggregating ` 3585.17 lacs are due for repayment in 2018-19 and 2019-20
respectively.

5

As at
31.03.2017

` in lacs
As at
31.03.2016

2,040.17

1,955.28

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Deferred tax liabilities
Relating to ixed assets
Deferred tax assets
Expenses / provisions allowable

6

7

190.33

159.63

1,849.84

1,795.65

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Trade deposits

1,421.55

1,270.02

Deferred payment liabilities (Refer Note 34)

6,619.23

7,578.95

Others

1,159.13

914.24

9,199.91

9,763.21

203.97

194.68

4,548.15

5,119.27

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for employee beneits

8

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED
Working capital borrowings from banks
UNSECURED
Banks

783.20

804.47

-

1,000.00

155.95

214.70

5,487.30

7,138.44

Related party
Fixed deposits
a.

Working Capital borrowings from banks is secured by hypothecation and by irst charge on stocks and book debts, etc., both
present & future and by second charge on the immovable assets of the Company, on paripassu basis with other banks. Buyer’s
credit ` 75.57 lacs (Previous year ` 443.41 lacs) is secured by subservient charge on current assets.

b.

Unsecured loans from banks include buyer’s credit outstanding ` 783.20 lacs. (Previous year ` 804.47 lacs).
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` in lacs

9

TRADE PAYABLES
Payable to subsidiary companies
Other payables (Refer Note 33)

10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
CURRENT MATURITIES OF LONG TERM DEBTS
SECURED
Term Loans from banks
UNSECURED
Fixed deposits
OTHERS
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued and due on deposits
Rent advance
Unclaimed fixed deposits and interest accrued thereon #
Other payables - Capital expenses
Employees
Deferred payment liabilities (Refer Note 34)
Statutory dues
Customers
Others

As at
31.03.2017

As at
31.03.2016

249.43
7,630.94

374.13
7,457.61

7,880.37

7,831.74

2,475.09

3,777.04

371.20

499.84

2,846.29

4,276.88

2.37
14.54
93.33
31.09
198.48
1,400.79
959.72
640.31
99.62

3.30
13.58
93.33
52.93
712.49
1,348.20
906.73
593.99
93.30

1,464.78

1,542.93

4,905.03

5,360.78

7,751.32

9,637.66

96.52
18.17
-

69.18
18.83
124.15
25.28

114.69

237.44

# Investor Education & Protection Fund will be credited as and when due.
11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for employee beneits - Gratuity
Leave encashment
Other Provisions - Equity dividend
Corporate tax on dividend

12

FIXED ASSETS
Depreciation / Lease Amortisation

Gross Value
Assets

Tangible Assets
Land- Freehold
Leasehold
Buildings
Plant and Equipment

2,660.40
132.60
7,226.07
39,343.17

Additions

Sales /
As at
Adjustments 31-03-2017

Up to
01-04-2016

For the
year

2,680.74

-

-

270.64

300.31
7,423.16
41,037.31

13.01
1,742.56
19,126.92

1.49
388.91
2,919.14

20.34
167.71

-

197.09
1,964.78

Net Value
As at
As at
31-03-2017 31-03-2016

Deletions/
Up to
Adjustments 31-03-2017
234.82

-

2,680.74

2,660.40

14.50
2,131.47
21,811.24

285.81
5,291.69
19,226.07

119.59
5,483.51
20,216.25

Furniture and Fixtures

958.32

96.85

11.39

1,043.78

684.87

76.90

8.41

753.36

290.42

273.45

Vehicles

465.90

54.11

49.98

470.03

148.74

64.92

39.44

174.22

295.81

317.16

Ofice equipment
Total
Intangible Assets
Software
Trade Mark Licence
Total
Grand Total
a)

As at
01-04-2016

1,311.55

190.77

11.21

1,491.11

795.84

144.77

10.52

930.09

561.02

515.71

52,098.01

2,691.65

343.22

54,446.44

22,511.94

3,596.13

293.19

25,814.88

28,631.56

29,586.07

661.55
501.35

48.07
-

-

709.62
501.35

480.08
500.60

69.67
0.29

-

549.75
500.89

159.87
0.46

181.47
0.75

1,162.90

48.07

-

1,210.97

980.68

69.96

-

1,050.64

160.33

182.22

53,260.91

2,739.72

343.22

55,657.41

23,492.62

3,666.09

293.19

26,865.52

28,791.89

29,768.29

48,016.70
5,942.64
698.43
53,260.91
20,660.21
3,372.88
540.47
23,492.62
29,768.29
27,356.49
Previous Year
Land, buildings and plant & equipment transferred under the Scheme of Amalgamation during the year 2006-07 were revalued as at 31st August 1985 and as at 31st March
1995. The revaluation in respect of factory, service buildings and plant and equipment was further updated as at 31st March 1998 based on current replacement cost by a
valuer and as a result, book value of the said assets had been increased by ` 2990.53 lacs.

b)

Includes capitalisation of inance cost - Plant and equipment ` 0.27 lac (Previous year ` 10.14 lacs).

d)

Plant and equipment includes certain equipment ` 10200 lacs (Previous year ` 10200 lacs) given on lease. (Refer Note 32).

40 JK Fenner

Notes to inancial statements

` in lacs
13 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Face Value (In `) As at 31st March, 2017
(Fully paid up)
Nos.
Value

As at 31st March, 2016
Nos.

Value

Long Term, Other Investments (at cost)
a)

Investments in Equity Instruments
Quoted (Ref. Note no 43)
Bodies Corporate
JK Paper Ltd.

10

-

- 2,78,37,500

13,460.45

JK Lakshmi Cement Ltd.

5

-

- 1,02,59,400

5,001.46

JK Tyre & Industries Ltd.

2

-

- 1,80,00,000

3,600.00

Unquoted
Bodies Corporate
Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.

10

2,74,940

27.49

2,74,940

27.49

CliniRx Research Pvt. Ltd

10

10,00,000

100.00

10,00,000

100.00

PSV Energy Pvt. Ltd

10

52,000

5.20

52,000

5.20

Hari Shankar Singhania Elastomer and Tyre
Research Institute

100

10

0.01

10

0.01

Subsidiary Companies
Southern Spinners and Processors Ltd.

10

50,50,000

2,055.00

50,50,000

2,055.00

Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd.

10

30,50,000

1,555.00

30,50,000

1,555.00

BMF Investments Ltd.

10

3,01,989

30.20

3,01,989

30.20

Acorn Engineering Ltd.

10

50,500

5.05

50,500

5.05

Divyashree Company Private Ltd

10

7,123

8,016.70

7,123

8,016.70

Madura Coats Workers' Co-operative Stores Ltd.

10

15,790

0.16

15,790

0.16

The Madurai District Pandian Consumers'
Co-operative Wholesale Stores Ltd. 'A' Class Share

50

1

-

1

-

Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.(7% Optionally Convertible
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares, fully
paid up)

100

11,00,000

1,100.00

11,00,000

1,100.00

CliniRx Research Pvt. Ltd (8% Optionally Convertible
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares)

10

15,00,000

150.00

15,00,000

150.00

Others

b)

Investments in Preference Shares
Unquoted

Aggregate value of Quoted Investments
Aggregate value of Unquoted Investments

Market value of Quoted Investments

13,044.81

35,106.72

-

22,061.91

13,044.81

13,044.81

13,044.81

35,106.72

-

61,656.39

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation, 2,09,589 Shares of Bengal & Assam Company Ltd (BACL) are held in the name
of a Trustee on behalf of the Company, being Subsidiary of BACL against their holding in Netlier Finco Ltd. Accordingly, the
amount against the said shares is shown under Long term loans and advances.
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14

As at
31.03.2017

As at
31.03.2016

22,000.00

-

LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans & advances to related party
Others
Capital advances
Security deposits with Govt. Authorities & Others

15

205.46

455.98

1,568.63

1,508.03

23,774.09

1,964.01

1,278.87

1,261.10

INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Raw materials #

531.33

409.11

2,713.29

2,256.97

Stock - in - trade

493.95

387.07

Stores and spares

240.37

183.11

5,257.81

4,497.36

582.40
26.15

714.80
47.53

Work-in-progress
Finished goods

# Includes raw materials in transit ` 186.78 lacs (Previous year ` 210.64 lacs).
16

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment - Considered Good
Doubtful

(26.15)

(47.53)

10,619.10

11,004.71

11,201.50

11,719.51

3.00

4.76

Current accounts

245.67

294.70

Savings accounts
Fixed deposit account - Margin money

0.04
181.37

0.04
162.47

430.08

461.97

11.35

103.96

2,378.34
321.11
2,947.22
309.62
5,967.64

2,296.90
27.85
2,050.51
355.83
4,835.05

124.47
20.24

27.88

144.71

27.88

Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts
Others (Considered good)
17

CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash on hand
Balances with banks

18

SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans & Advances to related parties
Others
Balance with Excise & Sales Tax Authorities
Export beneit receivable
Advance income-tax [Net of Provision ` 2629.96 lacs (Previous year ` 1959.19 lacs)]

Other advances
19

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest accrued but not due from related party
Other receivables
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` in lacs
2016-17

2015-16

Power transmission products

47,820.24

45,275.36

Moulded rubber products and services

15,963.37

15,131.43

886.94

460.31

64,670.55

60,867.10

20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products and services

Renewable energy

Other operating revenues

549.82

229.09

65,220.37

61,096.19

839.23

366.24

64,381.14

60,729.95

Interest income from short-term deposits and loans

537.11

34.99

Dividend income from long term investments

638.96

489.91

Revenue from operations (Gross)
Less: Inter division transfer

21 OTHER INCOME

Other non operating income
Exchange difference (Net)

-

10.44

2,047.88

2,045.26

146.42

37.13

3,370.37

2,617.73

Rubber

6,013.18

5,339.14

Chemicals

3,203.03

3,315.03

Reinforcement materials

4,690.10

4,628.49

Components and others

8,049.31

6,406.45

21,955.62

19,689.11

5,953.71

5,753.57

27.1%

29.2%

16,001.91

13,935.54

72.9%

70.8%

Lease Rent Received
Others

22 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

% of Imported / Indegeneous materials consumed
Imported (value)
(%)
Indigenous (value)
(%)

Raw materials consumed for the year has been determined after adjusting ` 33.79 lacs (Previous year ` 5.47 lacs) accounted
for on accrual basis in respect of estimated beneit on account of entitlement of import of raw materials under advance licence
against exports made under duty exemption scheme.
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2016-17

` in lacs
2015-16

2,713.29
531.33
493.95
3,738.57

2,256.97
409.11
387.07
3,053.15

2,256.97
409.11
387.07
3,053.15

1,905.93
462.21
344.87
2,713.01

(685.42)
25.39

(340.14)

Differential excise duty on increase / decrease of inished goods
Total (increase) / decrease in stock

(660.03)

(230.39)

8,027.57
495.10
579.20
9,101.87

7,477.77
444.75
553.49
8,476.01

(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Closing stock
Finished goods
Work in progress
Stock-in-trade (Engineering and other miscellaneous products)

23

Opening stock
Finished goods
Work in progress
Stock-in-trade (Engineering and other miscellaneous products)
Net (Increase)/Decrease in Stock

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salary, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Employees welfare expenses & other beneits

24

OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of stores, packing and spare parts
Power & Fuel

25

Less : Inter Division Transfer
Repairs to Buildings
Repairs to Machinery
Freight & transportation
Rent
Insurance
Rates & taxes
Professional Charges
Travelling expenses
Exchange Difference (Net)
Loss on assets sold / scrapped (net)
Corporate social responsibility
Miscellaneous expenses
a) Stores & spares consumed
Imported
(value)
(%)
Indigenous (value)
(%)
b) Miscellaneous Expenses include
(i) Payment to Auditors
Audit Fee
Tax Audit Fee
Other Services (Certiication fees)
Reimbursement of Expenses
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109.75

3,140.20

2,873.45
2,488.03

2,571.35
839.23

1,732.12

366.24

2,121.79

407.33
771.56
1,157.79
276.44
111.75
284.86
927.69
1,469.74
96.00
17.79
121.36
2,816.19
13,064.07

368.47
606.85
953.10
274.78
112.30
235.98
771.65
1,433.13
99.51
63.15
2,820.78
13,001.69

48.10
1.67%
2,825.35
98.33%

19.81
0.63%
3,120.39
99.37%

7.00
0.75
0.70
2.31
10.76

7.00
0.75
0.55
2.11
10.41

Notes to inancial statements
` in lacs
2016-17
(ii) Bad Debts written off
Less : Provision for doubtful debts created earlier
(iii) Provision for bad & doubtful debts
26 FINANCE COST
Interest

2015-16

12.62
11.61

-

1.01
-

31.47

2,786.14

3,042.62

56.37
(22.56)

66.55
125.99

2,819.95

3,235.16

Amortization of intangible assets

3,596.13
69.97

3,290.36
82.52

Less:Transfer from revaluation reserve

3,666.10
25.18

3,372.88
42.15

3,640.92

3,330.73

Other borrowing costs
Net (gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions
27 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Depreciation on tangible assets

28 Capital commitments (Net of advances) ` 791.45 lacs (Previous year ` 1189.55 lacs) and other commitments Nil (Previous
year Nil).
29 Contingent liabilities in respect of claims not accepted and not provided for ` 384.40 lacs (Previous year ` 871.49 lacs). Details
thereof are, Excise duty matters in appeal ` 64.90 lacs, Service tax matters in appeal ` 29.40 lacs, Sales tax matters in appeal
` 94.70 lacs and other matters ` 195.40 lacs (Previous year : ` 197.18 lacs, ` 28.65 lacs, ` 480.76 lacs & ` 164.90 lacs respectively).
In respect of certain disallowances and additions made by the Income tax Authorities, appeals are pending before the Appellate
Authorities and adjustment, if any, will be made after the same are inally settled.
30 Expenditure on In-house Research and Development (R&D) activities during the year:
Revenue expenditure (included in respective revenue accounts)

842.83

876.70

13.71

203.02

856.54

1,079.72

Capital expenditure (except land and building)

31

a)

Forward contracts for hedging receivables ` 156.26 lacs - USD 2.25 lacs (Previous year Nil).

b)

Foreign currency exposure unhedged net receivable ` 553.39 lacs - USD 8.64 lacs (Previous year ` 13.19 lacs GBP 0.14 lac) and net payable ` 338.40 lacs - Euro 4.80 lacs, ` 4.95 lacs - GBP 0.06 lac (Previous year net payable
` 71.58 lacs - USD 1.07 lacs and ` 226.27 lacs - Euro 2.98 lacs).

32

The Company has given certain speciied equipment to a related party on operating lease basis which is cancelable at
the option of lessee.

33

The details of amounts outstanding under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
to the extent of information available with the Company is as : (i) Principal & interest amount due and remaining unpaid
as at 31.03.2017 Nil (Previous year Nil), (ii) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year Nil (Previous year
Nil) and (iii) Interest accrued and unpaid as at 31.03.2017 Nil (Previous year Nil).

34

Deferred payment liabilities represent amount payable to a related party against certain equipment.

35

The Company has not provided diminution in the value of certain long term strategic investments, since in the opinion
of the Board, such diminution in their value is temporary in nature, considering the inherent value, nature of investments,
the investees’ assets and expected future cash low from such investments.
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36 EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS
Deined Beneit Plan - Gratuity (Funded) and Leave Encashment(Non-funded) - As per actuarial valuation on 31.03.2017
A Expenses recognised in the Statement of Proit and Loss:
Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Net actuarial [(gain) / loss]

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

89.23

77.40

32.50

30.92
8.95

50.66

55.47

12.09

(58.09)

(53.83)

-

-

14.72

(9.86)

57.37

107.66

-

-

-

-

96.52

69.18

101.96

147.53

202.83

50.48

-

-

Present value of obligation as at year end

942.92

771.96

222.13

213.50

Fair value of plan assets as at year end

846.40

702.78

-

-

-

-

-

-

Funded status - surplus / (deicit)

(96.52)

(69.18)

(222.13)

(213.50)

Net asset / (liability) as at year end

(96.52)

(69.18)

(222.13)

(213.50)

771.96

734.36

213.51

157.68

50.66

55.47

12.09

8.95

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet:

Change in the present value of the deined beneit obligation:
Opening deined beneit obligation
Interest cost
Current service cost

D

2016-17

Total expenses

Less: Unrecognised past service cost

C

Leave Encashment
(Non Funded)

Gratuity
(Funded)

Past service cost
Actual return on planned assets
B

` in lacs

89.23

77.40

32.50

30.92

Beneit paid out of funds

(146.39)

(82.06)

(93.34)

(91.71)

Beneit paid by Company

-

-

-

-

Past service cost

-

-

-

-

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation

177.46

(13.21)

57.36

107.66

Closing deined beneit obligation

942.92

771.96

222.12

213.50

702.78

643.16

-

-

Expected return

58.09

53.83

-

-

Contribution by employer

69.18

91.20

93.34

91.71
(91.71)

Change in the Fair value of Plan Assets are as follows:
Opening fair value of plan assets

Beneit paid

(146.39)

(82.06)

(93.34)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on obligation

162.74

(3.35)

-

-

Closing fair value of plan assets

846.40

702.78

-

-

Government bonds

-

-

Not

Not

Corporate bonds

-

-

Applicable

Applicable

99.95%

99.95%

0.05%

0.05%

Discount rate

7.25%

8%

7.25%

8%

Expected rate of return on assets

7.50%

8%

-

-

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of
total plan assets are as follows:-

Insurance policy
Others
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the
Company’s plans are shown below:-

Mortality table
Salary escalation
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Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate
5%

5%

5%

5%
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Amounts for the current and previous four periods in respect of Gratuity & Leave Encashment are as follows:-

` in lacs

Gratuity (Funded)
2016-17
2015-16
2014-15
2013-14
2012-13
942.93
771.96
734.36
706.25
763.50
Deined beneit obligation
846.40
702.78
643.16
672.19
655.20
Plan assets
(96.53)
(69.18)
(91.20)
(34.06)
(108.30)
Surplus / (Deicit)
120.70
(170.77)
Experience adjustment on plan assets
73.83
(21.90)
68.19
158.87
(3.35)
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities
58.18
(3.83)
13.06
Leave Encashment (Non Funded)
222.13
213.50
157.68
134.64
121.21
Deined beneit obligation
Plan assets
(222.13)
(213.50)
(157.68)
(134.64)
(121.21)
Surplus / (Deicit)
Experience adjustment on plan assets
57.37
107.66
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities
83.62
1.15
(0.62)
2016-17
2015-16
Provident and Other Funds
53.56
76.47
Superannuation Contributory Fund with LIC
a) The expected return on plan assets has been determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of plan assets held,
associated risks of assets management, historical results of returns and policies for plan assets.
b) The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take into account inlation, seniority, promotions and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.
c) Based on the Guidance Note from the Institute of Actuaries of India, the Company’s Actuary has reliably measured the provident fund liability in
respect of provident fund (trust) and there is no shortfall.
d) Deined Contribution Plan
Employer’s contribution to provident fund and other funds aggregating to ` 495.10 lacs (Previous year ` 444.75 lacs) has been included under
Note 24 - employee bebeit expense.
e) The voluntary retirement payments made during the year Nil (Previous year Nil).
37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(A) Related Parties
(i) Holding Company : Bengal & Assam Co. Ltd.
(iv)
(ii) Subsidiary Companies :
Southern Spinners and Processors Ltd. (SSPL)
Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd. (MCYSL)
BMF Investments Ltd.
(v)
Acorn Engineering Ltd. (AEL)
Divyashree Company Private Ltd. (DCPL)
(iii) Associates : PSV Energy Pvt Ltd. (PSVEPL)
Dwarkesh Energy Ltd. (DEL)
(vi) Enterprise over which KMP is able to exercise signiicant inluence - NIL

Fellow Subsidiary Companies :
LVP Foods Pvt. Ltd.
Panchmahal Properties Ltd.
Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Shri Vikrampati Singhania
Managing Director
Shri Nagaraju Srirama
President & Director

(vii) Other related parties : Hari Shankar Singhania Elastomer and Tyre Research Institute (HASETRI)
(B) Transactions conducted with related parties in the ordinary course of business :
Nature of Transactions
Holding company
Inter corporate deposit received
Inter corporate deposit repaid
Interest paid

` in lacs
2016-17

2015-16

1000.00

1000.00
-

43.29

58.91

22000.00
22061.91
1852.66
39.37
124.47

1758.40
87.85
-

389.37

155.69

Subsidiary Companies
Loan to BMF Investments Ltd.
Sale of Investments to BMF Investments Ltd.
Purchase of goods from MCYSL & SSPL
Sale of goods to MCYSL & SSPL
Interest received from BMF Investments Ltd.
Other expenses - DCPL, SSPL & MCYSL
Sale of ixed assets to SSPL
Associates - Purchase of goods from PSVEPL

-

0.06

55.21

33.58

0.05
Other related parties - Product testing
9.43
Remuneration to Managing Director ` 741.07 lacs (Previous Year ` 547.33 lacs) and President & Director ` 177.87 lacs (Previous Year ` 141.01 lacs).
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` in lacs

(C) Outstanding balances
Amount receivable / (payable)
Payable to holding company
To subsidiary companies - SSPL
From subsidiary companies - DCPL, MCYSL & BMF Investments Ltd.
From associates - PSVEPL
38

31.3.2017
(249.43)
22159.37
8.81

SPECIFIED BANK NOTE TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to notiication of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated March 30, 2017, disclosure of Speciied Bank Notes (SBN) held
and transacted during the period from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016 is provided in table below:
SBNs
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016
(+) Permitted receipts
(-) Permitted payments
(-) Amount deposited in Banks
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016

39

31.3.2016
(1000.00)
(374.13)
139.96
4.45

(I)

Other
denomination notes

Total

6.49

5.76

12.25

-

37.75

37.75

-

(35.34)

(35.34)

(6.49)

-

(6.49)

-

Expenditure in Foreign Currency
a) Consultancy and Professional fees
b) Interest
c) Others
d) CIF Value of Imports - Raw Materials and Components
Stores and Spares
Capital Goods
e) Dividend remitted in Foreign Currency
Year to which dividend relates

Number of Non-resident Shareholders
Number of Shares
(II) Earnings in foreign currency on account of FOB value of exports

8.17

8.17

2016-17
71.11
8.40
192.75
5546.27
31.40
853.27

2015-16
19.84
14.56
142.37
5737.35
21.96
1094.62

53.97
2015-16 &
2016-17
1
154200

69.39
2014-15 &
2015-16
1
154200

8019.39

8746.93

40

The authorised share capital of the Company was reclassiied as approved at the EGM held on 18th April 2017.

41

Dividend proposed to be distributed to Equity Shareholders ` 448.29 lacs (including Corporate Dividend tax of ` 75.83 lacs), per share amounting
to ` 15.

42

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Proit after tax (` In lacs)
5,677.01
4,847.81
Weighted average number of equity shares
2483066
2483066
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (Face Value of ` 10 each)
Cash
` 377.44
` 329.36
After Tax
` 228.63
` 195.23
With a view to monetise the investments and to improve the liquidity for the purpose of growth of the business, the Company
has sold the quoted investments to a wholly owned subsidiary.

43
44

The provision for current tax represents income tax payable computed under substantive provisions of the Income Act, 1961.

45

Previous year’s igures have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary.

Per our report attached
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director

HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2016-17
A

B

C

Cash low from Operating Activities
Net Proit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Transferred from revaluation reserve
Finance cost (net of interest income)
(Proit)/loss on sale of assets
Dividend received
Operating proit before working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other long term liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes (paid)
Net Cash from operating activities
Cash low from Investing Activities
Purchase of ixed assets
Sale of ixed assets
Purchase of investment
Sale of investment
Dividend received
Net Cash used in investing activities
Cash low from inancing activities
Proceeds of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Loan given
Interest paid (net)
Increase /(decrease) in cash credit and public deposits (net)
Dividend paid (Including dividend tax)
Net cash used in inancing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances as at the beginning of the year
Cash and bank balances as at the end of the year
Notes : 1) Figures in brackets are outlows.
2) Cash and bank balances comprise of :
(a) Cash on hand
(b) Balances with banks - Current accounts
Savings accounts
Fixed deposit account Margin money
Total Cash and Bank balances

Per our report attached
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director

` in lacs
2015-16

8,155.90

6,640.30

3,666.10
(25.18)
2,282.84
17.79
(638.96)
13,458.49
518.01
(296.47)
(760.45)
(116.83)
21.42
48.63
35.97
(454.80)
(563.31)
11,890.66
(3,321.41)
8,569.25

3,372.88
(42.15)
3,200.17
99.51
(489.91)
12,780.80
(118.99)
(330.89)
(450.81)
(10.22)
(7.04)
758.04
33.81
1,121.35
(807.61)
12,968.44
(2,114.13)
10,854.31

(2,787.18)
28.32
22,061.91
638.96
19,942.01

(5,546.72)
56.78
(999.61)
489.91
(5,999.64)

3,452.00
(7,334.36)
(22,000.00)
(2,283.77)
668.98
(1,046.00)
(28,543.15)
(31.89)
461.97
430.08

5,000.00
(6,829.44)
(3,199.31)
1,420.38
(1,344.85)
(4,953.22)
(98.55)
560.52
461.97

3.00
245.67
0.04
181.37
430.08

4.76
294.70
0.04
162.47
461.97
HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF J. K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated inancial
statements of J.K. Fenner (India) Limited (here in after
referred to as “Company or the Holding Company’’), and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘‘the Group’’), its
associates, comprising of the consolidated balance sheet as
at March 31, 2017, the consolidated statement of proit
and loss and the consolidated cash low statement for
the year then ended and a summary of the signiicant
accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as ‘‘the consolidated inancial
statements’’).
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of these consolidated inancial statements
in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
inancial position, consolidated inancial performance and
consolidated cash lows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards speciied under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016 as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal inancial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
inancial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated inancial statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated inancial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account
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the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing speciied under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
inancial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
consolidated inancial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal inancial control relevant to the Holding Company’s
preparation of the consolidated inancial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated inancial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of
their reports referred to in Other Matters paragraph below,
is suficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated inancial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated inancial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
inancial position of the Group, as at 31 March, 2017 and
its consolidated inancial performance and its consolidated
cash lows for the year then ended.
Other Matters
We did not audit the inancial statements of three
subsidiaries, whose inancial statements relect total assets
of ` 16,048.88 Lacs as at 31st March, 2017, total revenues
of ` 7431.38 Lacs and net cash outlows amounting to
` 22178.77 Lacs for the year ended on that date, as

considered in the consolidated inancial statements.
These inancial statements have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated inancial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our
report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act,
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based
solely on the reports of the other auditors.
Our opinion on the consolidated inancial statements, and
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modiied in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of
the other auditors and inancial statements certiied by the
Management.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:
a)

none of the directors of the Group companies
incorporated in India is disqualiied as on 31st
March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
inancial controls over inancial reporting of the
holding company & its subsidiary companies and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure A” to this report;
and

g)

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
i. The consolidated inancial statement discloses
the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated inancial position of the Group.
Refer Note 29 to the consolidated inancial
statements;

We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated inancial
statements.

ii. The group did not have any material foreseeable
losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts; and

b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated inancial statements have been kept
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to transfer, to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India; and

c)

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated
statement of proit and loss, and the consolidated
cash low statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated inancial statements.

d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated inancial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
speciied under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016 as amended.

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures
in Note 40 in its consolidated inancial statements
as to holdings as well as dealings in Speciied
Bank Notes during the period from 8 November,
2016 to 30 December, 2016. Based on our audit
procedures and relying on the management
representation regarding the holding and
nature of cash transactions, including speciied
bank notes, we report that these disclosures
are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the company and as produced to
us by the management.

e)

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the holding company as on
31st March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the holding company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, its associate companies,

For S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N
Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No: 087294

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 12, 2017
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT
TO THE MEMBERS OF J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED

Auditors’ Responsibility

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s

(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

internal inancial controls over inancial reporting based on

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of

our audit.

‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

section.

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated inancial

on Auditing, as speciied under section 143(10) of the

statement of J.K. Fenner (India) Limited as of March 31,

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit

2017, we have audited the internal inancial controls over

of internal inancial controls, both issued by the Institute

inancial reporting of J. K. Fenner (India) Limited (“Holding

of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and

Company”) and its two subsidiary companies and its

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

associate companies which are companies incorporated in

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

India, as of the date.

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

inancial controls over inancial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit

and its subsidiary companies, associate companies which

evidence about the adequacy of the internal inancial

are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for

controls system over inancial reporting and their operating

establishing and maintaining internal inancial controls

effectiveness.

based on the internal control over inancial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal inancial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and eficient conduct of its business,

Our audit of internal inancial controls over inancial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
inancial controls over inancial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the inancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
inancial information, as required under the Act.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is suficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal inancial

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and

controls system over inancial reporting.

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial

internal inancial controls over inancial reporting to future

Reporting

periods are subject to the risk that the internal inancial

A company’s internal inancial control over inancial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of inancial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated inancial statements for

control over inancial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal inancial

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary

control over inancial reporting includes those policies and

companies

procedures that:

incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material

and

associates

which

are

companies

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in

respects, an adequate internal inancial controls system

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly relect the

over inancial reporting and such internal inancial controls

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

over inancial reporting were operating effectively as at

company;

March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over inancial

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
inancial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of

reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
Other matters

management and directors of the company; and
c) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal

or disposition of the company’s assets that could

inancial controls over inancial reporting insofar as it relates

have a material effect on the inancial statements.

to three subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over

India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors
of such companies .

Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal inancial
controls over inancial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 12, 2017

For S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N
Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No: 087294
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J.K. Fenner (India) Ltd.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2017

Note No.

As at
31.03.2017

` in lacs
As at
31.03.2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

2
3

Minority Interest
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Other long term liabilities
Long term provisions

248.31
56,462.50
56,710.81
784.88

248.31
46,274.19
46,522.50
769.88

4
5
6
7

11,308.35
1,012.20
9,199.91
246.66
21,767.12

11,439.98
964.57
9,763.21
213.09
22,380.85

Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

8
9
10
11

9,100.37
8,201.47
8,069.00
117.29
25,488.13
1,04,750.94

10,239.42
7,790.75
10,153.83
237.74
28,421.74
98,094.97

8,001.69

8,001.69

31,199.24
160.33
574.07
4.08
31,937.72
26,941.71
1,908.23
1,121.53
61,909.19

32,250.77
182.22
278.37
2.86
32,714.22
29,507.31
2,070.45
1,142.95
65,434.93

6,873.29
12,273.88
486.84
15,172.99
33.06
34,840.06
1,04,750.94

6,121.04
12,612.06
677.47
5,219.90
27.88
24,658.35
98,094.97

Total
ASSETS
Goodwill on Consolidation of Subsidiaries
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets under development

12

Non-current investments
Long term loans and advances
Other non-current assets

13
14

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Cash and Bank Balances
Short-term loans and advances
Other current assets

15
16
17
18
19
Total

Signiicant Accounting Policies

1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these inancial statements
Per our report attached
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director

HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017
Note No

2016-17

` in lacs
2015-16

77,911.36

66,834.85

6,412.33

6,028.25

71,499.03

60,806.60

3,271.79

2,656.38

74,770.82

63,462.98

24,968.49

22,616.44

3,715.77

3,546.25

(618.46)

(337.38)

REVENUE:
Revenue from operations (Gross)

20

Less:Excise duty
Revenue from operations (Net)
Other income

21
Total Revenue (I)

EXPENSES:
Cost of materials consumed

22

Purchase of stock-in-trade
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories of inished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

23

Employee beneit expenses

24

10,173.64

9,529.60

Other expenses

25

14,603.25

14,154.45

52,842.69

49,509.36

21,928.13

13,953.62

Total Expenses (II)
Proit before interest & depreciation (I-II)
Finance costs

26

Proit before depreciation
Depreciation and amortization expense

27

Proit before tax

3,049.33

3,615.16

18,878.80

10,338.46

3,771.51

3,486.12

15,107.29

6,852.34

3,930.96

1,847.64

Tax expense:
Current tax
Income tax adjustments for earlier year
Deferred tax

5

Proit for the period before adjustment for minority interest
Minority Interest
Proit after tax

(0.01)

0.11

47.36

79.02

11,128.98

4,925.57

15.00

14.41

11,113.98

4,911.16

Basic / Diluted Earnings per equity share (Nominal Value per share ` 10 (2015-16 ; ` 10)
Cash

` 601.39

` 341.36

After Tax

` 447.59

` 197.79

Signiicant Accounting Policies

1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these inancial statements
Per our report attached
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director

HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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Notes to consolidated inancial statements
1

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
a.

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of JK Fenner (India) Limited
(“the Company”) and Financial Statements of the following (incorporated in India) as on 31.03.2017:Subsidiaries:
Sl. No

b.

Name of the Company

Shareholding

1

Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd.

100%

2

Southern Spinners and Processors Ltd.

100%

3

Acorn Engineering Ltd.

100%

4

BMF Investments Ltd.

100%

5

Divya Shree Company Pvt Ltd.

61%

The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis
by adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.

c.

In case of Associates, where Company holds directly or indirectly through subsidiaries 20% or more equity
or/ and exercises significant influence, investments are accounted for by using equity method in accordance
with Accounting Standard (AS) - 23 - “ Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements”.

d.

The difference between the cost of investment and the share of net assets at the time of acquisition of
shares in the subsidiaries is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case
may be.

e.

The Accounting Policies of the Company and its Subsidiaries are largely similar. However, few Accounting
Policies differ than the policies followed by the Company. Management is of the view that overall impact of
the same on these Consolidated Financial Statements will not be material.

f.

Signiicant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts of the inancial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries are set out in their respective inancial statements.

g.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies, in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting practices.

h.

Figures pertaining to the subsidiary companies have been reclassiied wherever considered necessary to
bring them in line with the Company’s inancial statements.
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Notes to consolidated inancial statements

2

As at
31.03.2017

` in lacs
As at
31.03.2016

8,00,00,000 (Previous year 8,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each

8,000.00

8,000.00

10,00,000 (Previous year 10,00,000) preference shares of ` 100/-each

1,000.00

1,000.00

9,000.00

9,000.00

248.31

248.31

Aggregate number of Equity shares allotted to shareholders as fully paid up pursuant to
Scheme of Amalgamation without payment being received in cash on 7th November 2007.

23,13,000

23,13,000

Above includes shares allotted to holding company

20,97,522

20,97,522

2,189,314

2,189,314

154,200

154,200

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid (Equity Shares with equal rights)
24,83,066 (Previous year 24,83,066) equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up
a)

b)

Details of each shareholder holding more than 5% shares (Nos.):
Bengal & Assam Company Limited - Holding Company
Henry F. Cockill & Sons Ltd, U.K.

c)

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:
24,83,066

24,83,066

Additions during the year

Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year

-

-

Deletion during the year

-

-

24,83,066

24,83,066

Shares outstanding as at the end of the year
3

RESERVES AND SURPLUS
a) Capital Reserve
b) Capital Redemption Reserve
c) Securities Premium Reserve

343.18

343.18

77.10

77.10

1,285.62

1,285.62

833.62

877.46

29.10

43.84

804.52

833.62

d) Revaluation Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Less : Amount transferred (i)
Balance as at the end of the year
e) Reserve (as per RBI Guidelines)
Balance as at the beginning of the year

225.73

186.43

Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Proit and Loss during the year

1,143.68

39.30

Balance as at the end of the year

1,369.41

225.73

40,898.02

37,398.02

f) General Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Proit and Loss during the year
Balance as at the end of the year
g) Surplus in Statement of Proit and Loss
Total Reserves & Surplus (a to g)

3,176.76

3,500.00

44,074.78

40,898.02

8,507.89

2,610.92

56,462.50

46,274.19

(i) Transfer to Proit and Loss Statement ` 25.18 lacs (Previous year ` 42.15 lacs) towards additional depreciation arising out of
revaluation of Fixed Assets, ` 3.92 lacs (Previous year ` 1.69 lacs) towards assets sold / written off.
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` in lacs
As at
31.03.2016

As at
31.03.2017
Details of Surplus in Proit and Loss Account
Balance as at the beginning of the year

2,610.92

2,434.48

Proit for the year

11,113.98

4,911.16

Transfer to Reserve (as per RBI Guidelines)

(1,143.68)

(39.30)

12,581.22

7,306.34

Less: Appropriations:
744.92

869.07

Proposed inal dividend

Interim dividend paid

-

124.15

Corporate Dividend tax

151.65

202.20

3,176.76

3,500.00

8,507.89

2,610.92

Transfer to General Reserve

` in lacs
Non - Current
4 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Current *

As at
31.03.2017

As at
31.03.2016

As at
31.03.2017

As at
31.03.2016

7,723.18

9,282.31

2,475.09

3,777.04

7,723.18

9,282.31

2,475.09

3,777.04

3,585.17

2,157.67

371.20

499.84

-

-

-

200.00

3,585.17

2,157.67

371.20

699.84

-

-

(2,846.29)

(4,476.88)

11,308.35

11,439.98

-

-

2,014.76

1,936.43

812.23
190.33

812.23
159.63

1,012.20

964.57

SECURED
Term Loans
Banks
UNSECURED
Fixed Deposits
others

Less : Amount disclosed under the head
"Other Current Liabilities" (Note 10)
* Payable during next 12 months
5

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Relating to Fixed Assets
Deferred Tax Assets
Unabsorbed Losses and depreciation under Income tax
Expenses / Provisions Allowable

6

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Trade Deposits
Deferred Payment Liabilities (Refer Note 32)
Others

58 JK Fenner

1,421.55
6,619.23
1,159.13
9,199.91

1,270.02
7,578.95
914.24
9,763.21

Notes to consolidated inancial statements

As at
31.03.2017
7

8

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
Provisions for employee beneits
Contingent Provision against Standard assets
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED
Working Capital Borrowings from Banks
UNSECURED
From Banks
Fixed Deposits
Related Party
Others

9

` in lacs
As at
31.03.2016

224.13
22.53
246.66

213.09
213.09

6761.22

7220.25

783.20
155.95
1,400.00

804.47
214.70
1,000.00

-

1,000.00

9,100.37

10,239.42

8,201.47

7,790.75

8,201.47

7,790.75

2,475.09

3,777.04

371.20

499.84

TRADE PAYABLES
Other payables (Refer Note 31)

10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
CURRENT MATURITIES OF LONG TERM DEBTS
SECURED
Term Loans from Banks
UNSECURED
Fixed Deposits
Others

-

200.00

2,846.29

4,476.88

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

14.44

10.48

Interest accrued and due on deposits

14.54

13.58

Rent Advance

93.33

93.33

Unclaimed ixed deposits and interest accrued thereon #

31.09

52.93

198.48
1,440.19
959.72
810.64
99.62

712.49
1,395.71
906.73
748.99
93.30

1,560.66

1,649.41

5,222.71

5,676.95

8,069.00

10,153.83

OTHERS

Other payables
Capital payables
Employees
Deferred Payment Liabilities (Refer Note 32)
Statutory dues
Customers
Others

# Investor Education & Protection Fund will be credited as and when due.
11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provisions for employee beneits
Gratuity
Leave encashment
Other Provisions
Equity dividend
Corporate tax on dividend

99.12

69.48

18.17

18.83

-

124.15
25.28

117.29

237.74
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12 FIXED ASSETS
` in lacs
Depreciation / Lease Amortisation

Gross Value
Assets

As at
01-04-2016

Additions

Sales /
As at
Adjustments 31-03-2017

Up to
01-04-2016

For the
year

Net Value
As at
As at
31-03-2017 31-03-2016

Deletions/
Up to
Adjustments 31-03-2017

Tangible Assets
Land
Freehold
Leasehold
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures
Vehicles
Ofice equipment
Total

4,617.83

20.34

-

4,638.17

-

-

-

-

4,617.83

4,638.17

132.60

167.71

-

300.31

13.01

1.49

-

14.50

285.81

119.59

7,540.57

207.33

-

7,747.90

1,885.92

397.84

-

2,283.76

5,464.14

5,654.65

41,341.79

1,988.41

274.86

43,055.34

20,598.58

3,039.38

237.84

23,400.12

19,655.22

20,743.21

982.39

97.68

11.39

1,068.68

705.42

77.44

8.41

774.45

294.23

276.97

477.60

54.11

49.98

481.73

159.52

64.92

39.44

185.00

296.73

318.08

1,334.88

190.84

11.21

1,514.51

814.58

145.65

10.52

949.71

564.80

520.30

56,427.66

2,726.42

347.44

58,806.64

24,177.03

3,726.72

296.21

27,607.54

31,199.10

32,250.63

662.84

48.07

-

710.91

481.37

69.67

-

551.04

159.87

181.47

Intangible Assets
Software
Trade Mark Licence
Total
Grand Total
Previous Year

501.35

-

-

501.35

500.60

0.29

-

500.89

0.46

0.75

1,164.19

48.07

-

1,212.26

981.97

69.96

-

1,051.93

160.33

182.22

57,591.85

2,774.49

347.44

60,018.90

25,159.00

3,796.68

296.21

28,659.47

31,359.43

32,432.85

52,329.63

5,979.21

716.99

57,591.85

22,172.64

3,528.27

541.91

25,159.00

32,432.85

30,156.99

a) Land, buildings and plant & machinery transferred under the Scheme of Amalgamation during the year 2006-07 were revalued
as at 31st August 1985 and as at 31st March 1995. The revaluation in respect of factory, service buildings and plant and machinery
was further updated as at 31st March 1998 based on current replacement cost by a valuer and as a result, book value of the said
assets had been increased by ` 2990.53 lacs.
b) Includes capitalisation of inance cost - Plant and Machinery ` 0.27 lac (Previous year ` 10.14 lacs).
c) Plant and equipment includes certain equipments ` 10200 lacs (Previous year ` 10200 lacs) given on lease. (Refer Note 30)
` in lacs

13

As at
31.03.2017

As at
31.03.2016

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Long Term Investment
Quoted
24,919.19

27,333.92

Unquoted
Equity

599.16

613.83

Preference Shares

150.00

150.00

1,132.69

1,132.69

140.67

276.87

26,941.71

29,507.31

Equity

Associates
Mutual Funds
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` in lacs
As at
31.03.2017
14

As at
31.03.2016

LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances
Security deposits with Govt. Authorities & Others

15

207.39
1,700.84
1,908.23

457.86
1,612.59
2,070.45

1,555.66
703.45
3,844.80
493.95
275.43
6,873.29

1,518.66
500.75
3,498.93
387.07
215.63
6,121.04

588.30
26.15
(26.15)
1,685.58

725.02
47.53
(47.53)
11,887.04

12,273.88

12,612.06

INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Raw materials #
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock - in - Trade
Stores and spares
# Includes Raw materials in transit ` 186.78 lacs (Previous year ` 210.64 lacs).

16

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment - Considered Good
Doubtful
Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts
Others (Considered good)

17

CASH & BANK BALANCES
4.43

8.25

Balances with banks - Current accounts

265.50

331.21

Savings accounts

0.04

0.04

209.37

190.47

7.50

147.50

486.84

677.47

2,478.27

2,403.13

Cash on hand

Fixed deposit account
Margin money
Others
18

SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Others - Security Deposit - Balance with Excise & Sales tax authorities
Export Beneit Receivable

355.76

56.55

Advance Income-tax (Net of Provision ` 4223.54 lacs, previous year ` 2150.24 lacs)

2,980.36

2,097.79

Inter Corporate Deposit

9,000.00

-

358.60

662.43

15,172.99

5,219.90

Other advances
19

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest accrued but not due

12.82

-

Other receivables

20.24

27.88

33.06

27.88
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2016-17

` in lacs
2015-16

Sale of Products and Services

69,738.33

65,934.08

Interest on Loans & Deposits

14.34

0.25

231.12

161.87

7,173.36

271.21

20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Other Financial Services - Dividend from Shares
Proit on Sale of Long Term Investments
Other operating revenues

754.21

467.44

77,911.36

66,834.85

21 OTHER INCOME
Interest income from short-term deposits and loans

426.74

52.19

Dividend income from long term investments

638.96

490.33

Proit on Sale of Non-Current Investments

-

6.96

Other non operating income - Exchange Difference (Net)

-

10.44

2,047.88

2,045.26

Lease Rent Received

158.21

51.20

3,271.79

2,656.38

Rubber

6,013.18

5,339.14

Chemicals

3,203.03

3,315.03

Reinforcement materials

2,837.43

2,870.08

Cotton

4,395.91

4,101.48

Components and Others

8,518.94

6,990.71

24,968.49

22,616.44

5,953.71

5,753.57

Others

22 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

% of Imported / Indigenous materials consumed
Imported

-

(value)
(%)

23.8%

25.4%

Indigenous - (value)

19,014.78

16,862.87

76.2%

74.6%

3,844.80

3,498.93

(%)
23

(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Closing stock
Finished goods
Work in progress

703.45

500.75

Stock-in-trade (Engineering and Other Miscellaneous Products)

493.95

387.07

5,042.20

4,386.75

3,498.93

2,980.38

Opening stock
Finished goods
Work in progress

500.75

586.74

Stock-in-trade (Engineering and Other Miscellaneous Products)

387.07

344.87

4,386.75

3,911.99

(655.45)

(474.76)

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Stock
Differential Excise Duty on Increase / Decrease of Finished Goods
Total (Increase) / Decrease in Stock
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` in lacs
24

25

2016-17

2015-16

8,968.18
577.90
627.56
10,173.64

8,420.66
503.09
605.85
9,529.60

3,024.58
2,484.58
414.60
933.26
1,314.67
242.32
122.58
314.45
927.69
1,469.74
129.51
16.53
121.36
3,087.38
14,603.25

3,305.86
2,563.11
380.38
754.77
1,099.11
240.70
124.81
261.80
771.65
1,463.68
8.84
94.78
63.15
3,021.81
14,154.45

48.10
1.59%
2,976.48
98.41%

20.17
0.61%
3,285.69
99.39%

8.55
1.25
0.70
3.28
13.78

8.82
1.30
0.55
2.97
13.64

(ii) Bad Debts written off

12.62

-

Less : Provision for doubtful debts created earlier

11.61

-

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salary, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and other funds
Employees welfare expenses & Other Beneits
OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of stores, packing and spare parts
Power & Fuel
Repairs to Buildings
Repairs to Machinery
Freight & Transportation
Rent
Insurance
Rates & Taxes
Professional Charges
Travelling Expenses
Exchange Difference (Net)
Loss on Assets Sold / Scrapped (Net)
Corporate Social Responsibility
Miscellaneous Expenses
a) Stores & spares consumed
Imported
(value)
(%)
Indigenous (value)
(%)
b) Miscellaneous Expenses include
(i) Payment to Auditors - Audit Fee
Tax Audit Fee
Other Services (Certiication fees)
Reimbursement of Expenses

26

27

(iii) Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts
FINANCE COST
Interest
Other borrowing costs
Net (gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions

1.01

-

-

31.47

3,015.52
56.37
(22.56)
3,049.33

3,422.62
66.55
125.99
3,615.16

3,726.72

3,445.75

69.97

82.52

3,796.69

3,528.27

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Depreciation on tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets

Less:Transfer from revaluation reserve

25.18

42.15

3,771.51

3,486.12
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28

Capital Commitments (Net of advances) ` 791.45 lacs (Previous year ` 1189.55 lacs) and Other Commitments Nil
(Previous year Nil).

29

Contingent liabilities in respect of claims not accepted and not provided for ` 489.79 lacs (Previous year ` 990.66 lacs).
Details thereof are, Excise duty matters in appeal ` 64.90 lacs, Service tax matters in appeal ` 29.40 lacs, Sales tax
matters in appeal ` 152.05 lacs and other matters ` 243.44 lacs (Previous year : ` 197.18 lacs, ` 28.65 lacs, ` 510.57 lacs
& ` 254.26 lacs respectively). In respect of certain disallowances and additions made by the Income tax Authorities,
appeals are pending before the Appellate Authorities and adjustment, if any, will be made after the same are inally
settled.

30

The Company has given certain speciied equipments to a related party on operating lease basis which is cancelable at the
option of Lessee.

31

The details of amounts outstanding under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) to
the extent of information available with the Company are as : (i) Principal & Interest amount due and remaining unpaid as at
31.03.2017 Nil (Previous year Nil), (ii) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year Nil (Previous year Nil) and (iii)
Interest Accrued and unpaid as at 31.03.2017 Nil (Previous year Nil)

32

Deferred Payment liabilities represent amount payable to a related party against certain equipments.

33

The Company has not provided diminution in the value of certain long term strategic investments, since in the opinion of
the Board, such diminution in their value is temporary in nature, considering the inherent value, nature of investments, the
investees’ assets and expected future cash low from such investments.

34
35
(A)

The Voluntary Retirement payments made during the year Nil (Previous year Nil).
SEGMENT INFORMATION:
Information about Business Segments (Primary Segments) :
Particulars

Business Segment
Investment
2016-17

A
1

REVENUE
Gross Revenue (External)
Less: Inter Segment

` in lacs

Polymer

2015-16

2016-17

Cotton-Yarn

2015-16

2016-17

Total

Others

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

7,419

433

64,381

60,730

8,484

8,180

36

36

80,320

69,379

-

-

39

454

2,333

2,054

36

36

2,408

2,544
66,835

Total revenue

7,419

433

64,342

60,276

6,151

6,126

-

-

77,911

2

Other Income

639

490

2,607

2,128

13

25

12

14

3,272

2,656

3

Total Revenue

8,058

923

66,949

62,404

6,164

6,151

12

14

81,183

69,491

B

RESULTS

1

Segment Result (PBIT)

7,898

922

10,337

9,386

(126)

111

48

49

18,157

10,468

2

Interest Expense (Net)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,049

3,615

3

Proit Before Tax

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15,107

6,852

4a

Provision for Current Tax

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,931

1,848

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

48

79

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,129

4,926

45,613

38,042

52,148

52,507

3,735

3,631

1,948

1,970

1,03,445

96,149

1,551

1,345

41,665

45,816

3,120

2,754

(21)

(19)

46,315

49,896

-

-

2,786

5,545

34

39

-

-

2,820

5,583

-

-

3,641

3,331

131

155

-

-

3,772

3,486

4b

Deferred Tax (NET)

4c

Minimum Alternate Tax

5

Credit entitlement
Proit after Tax

C

Other Information:

1

Segment Assets

2

Segment Liabilities

3

Capital Expenditure

4

Depreciation and
Amortization expenses
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(B)

Information about Geographical Segments (Secondary Segments):
Particulars

1
2

Gross Sales less inter segment
Segment Assets

Domestic

` in lacs
Total

Overseas

2016-17

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

70,765
1,00,825

58,394
93,146

10,419
2,620

11,098
3,004

81,183
1,03,445

69,491
96,149

Notes :

Primary Segment Reporting (by Business Segment)
Segments have been identiied in line with the Accounting Standard on “ Segment Reporting (AS-17) taking into account risks and returns of
these Segments. The Company has identiied four segments i.e. Polymer, Cotton-Yarn, Investments & Others and therefore reported accordingly.
Secondary Segments Reporting (by Geographical Segments - Customer location)
In respect of Secondary Segment Information, the Company has identiied its Geographical Segments as (a) Domestic and (b) Overseas on the
basis of location of customers.

36 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(A) Related Parties
(i) Holding Company :
Bengal & Assam Co. Ltd.

(iii) Associates :

(v) Enterprise over which KMP

PSV Energy Pvt. Ltd. (PSVEPL)

is able to exercise signiicant

Dwarkesh Energy Ltd. (DEL)

inluence: NIL

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) :
Shri Vikrampati Singhania
Managing Director
Shri Nagaraju Srirama

(iv) Fellow Subsidiary Companies :

(vi) Other related parties :

LVP Foods Pvt. Ltd.

Hari Shankar Singhania

Panchmahal properties Ltd.

Elastomer and Tyre Research

President & Director

Institute (HASETRI)

(B) Transactions conducted with related parties in the ordinary course of business :
` in lacs
Nature of Transactions

2016-17

2015-16

Inter Corporate Deposit received

1400.00

1500.00

Refund of Inter Corporate Deposit

1200.00

1700.00

44.70

133.67

55.21

33.58

0.05

9.43

Holding Company

Interest Paid
Associates
Purchase of goods (PSVEPL)
Other related parties:
Product testing

Remuneration to Managing Director ` 741.07 lacs (Previous Year ` 547.33 lacs) and President & Director ` 177.87 lacs
(Previous Year ` 141.01 lacs.)
(C) Outstanding balances

31.3.2017

31.3.2016

(1401.04)

(1,200.00)

8.81

4.45

Amount receivable / (payable)
Holding Company
Associates
37

The authorised share capital of the Holding Company was reclassiied as approved at the EGM held on 18th April 2017.

38

Dividend proposed to be distributed to Equity shareholders ` 448.29 lacs (including Corporate Dividend tax of ` 75.83 lacs),
per share amounting to ` 15.
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39

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Sl.
No.

Name of the entity

Share in proit or loss

Net Assets (i.e., total assets minus
total liabilities)
As % of
consolidated
net assets

Amount
` in lacs

As % of
consolidated
proit or (loss)

Amount
` in lacs

3

4

5

6

1

2

A

Parent
J.K. Fenner (India) Limited

36.91%

20933.81

51.08%

5677.01

B
1
2
3
4
5
6

Subsidiaries
Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Limited
Southern Spinners and Processors Limited
Acorn Engineering Limited
BMF Investments Limited
Divyashree Company Private Limited
Minority Interest

1.29%
1.36%
0.01%
58.20%
3.61%
(1.38%)

730.91
769.12
8.32
33005.06
2048.47
(784.88)

(1.38%)
(1.36%)
0.00%
51.45%
0.35%
(0.13%)

(153.54)
(151.59)
0.25
5,718.38
38.47
(15.00)

C
1
2

Associates (Investment as per the equity method)
Dwarkesh Energy Limited
PSV Energy Private Limited

-

-

-

-

100.00%

56710.81

100.00%

11113.98

TOTAL
40

SPECIFIED BANK NOTE TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to notiication of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated March 30, 2017, disclosure of speciied bank notes (SBN) held and
transacted during the period from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016 is provided in table below:

` in lacs
SBNs
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016

Other
denomination notes
8.96

Total

6.67

15.63

(+) Permitted receipts

-

47.75

47.75

(-) Permitted payments

-

(45.29)

(45.29)

(8.96)

-

(8.96)

-

9.13

9.13

(-) Amount deposited in Banks
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016
41

42

43

` in lacs
EARNINGS PER SHARE
2016-17
2015-16
11,113.98
4,911.16
Proit after Tax (after adjusting for Minority Interest)
2483066
2483066
Weighted average number of equity shares
Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity share (Face Value of ` 10 each)
` 601.39
` 341.36
Cash
` 447.59
` 197.79
After Tax
Figures pertaining to Subsidiary Companies have been reclassiied wherever necessary to bring them in line with the Parent
Company's Financial Statements.

Previous year's igures have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary.

Per our report attached
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director

HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT

` in lacs
2016-17
A

Net Proit before tax
Adjustments for :- Depreciation and amortization expenses
Transferred from Revaluation Reserve
Finance cost (Net of interest income)
(Proit)/Loss on sale of Assets
(Proit)/Loss on sale of Investments

6,851.25

3,796.69

3,528.27

(25.18)

(42.15)

2,318.26

3,356.44

16.53

94.78

(7,173.35)

(278.17)

22.53

(490.33)

13,423.81

13,020.09

476.53

(270.39)

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and advances

(309.99)

(255.74)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

(752.25)

(473.77)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets

(116.83)

(10.22)

Dividend Received
Operating Proit before Working Capital Changes
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liabilities

21.42

(7.04)

410.73

756.10

40.55

38.49

(329.48)

1,102.29

(563.31)

(807.61)

Cash generated from Operations

12,301.18

13,092.20

Direct taxes (paid)

(4,813.14)

(2,163.30)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other long term liabilities

Net Cash from Operating Activities
Cash low from Investing Activities - Purchase of Fixed Assets

7,488.04

10,928.90

(2,820.90)

(5,576.90)

30.79

78.57

(31,924.50)

(1,463.45)

Sale of investment

41,663.45

1,105.47

Dividend Received

638.96

490.33

7,587.80

(5,365.98)

Sale of Fixed Assets
Purchase of investment

Net Cash used in Investing Activities
C

15,107.29

(638.96)

Provisions against Standard assets

B

2015-16

Cash low from Operating Activities

Cash low from Financing Activities
Proceeds of Borrowings
Repayment of Borrowings
Interest paid (Net)
Increase /(Decrease) in Cash Credit and Public Deposits
Dividend paid (Including dividend tax)
Net cash used in Financing Activities

4,852.00

6,500.00

(17,534.36)

(8,529.44)

(2,319.18)

(3,355.58)

781.07
(1,046.00)
(15,266.47)

1,207.19
(1,344.85)
(5,522.68)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Bank balances

(190.63)

40.24

Cash and Bank balances as at the beginning of the year

677.47

637.23

Cash and Bank balances as at the end of the year

486.84

677.47

Notes :

1) Figures in brackets are outlows.
2) Cash and Bank balances comprise of - Cash on hand
Balances with banks - Current accounts
Savings accounts
Fixed deposit account-Margin money
Others

Total Cash and Bank balances

Per our report attached
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director

4.43

8.25

265.50

331.21

0.04

0.04

209.37

190.47

7.50
486.84

147.50
677.47

HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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Financial Information of Subsidiaries and Associate Companies
(Pursuant to irst proviso to sub section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules , 2014)
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

` in lacs
Name of Subsidiaries

Particulars

Modern Cotton
Yarn Spinners
Ltd.

Reporting period for the subsidiary
concerned, if different from the holding
company’s reporting period
Reporting Currency
Closing Exchange Rate
Share Capital
Reserves & Surplus
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Investments
Turnover
Proit / (Loss) before taxation
Provision for taxation
Proit after taxation
Proposed Dividend
% of Share holding

Southern
Spinners and
Processors Ltd.

Acorn
Engineering Ltd.

BMF Investments Ltd.

Divyashree
Company Private
Ltd.

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

INR
N.A
305.00
185.96
2,429.76
2,429.76
0.47
3,384.42
(165.08)
(11.54)
(153.54)
100.00

INR
N.A
505.00
742.15
2,668.27
2,668.27
0.47
5,103.78
(146.61)
4.98
(151.59)
100.00

INR
N.A
5.05
3.27
8.46
8.46
0.56
0.36
0.11
0.25
100.00

INR
N.A
30.20
10,850.39
35,971.46
35,971.46
25,429.24
7,419.07
7,215.11
1,496.73
5,718.38
100.00

INR
N.A
1.17
2,011.31
2,069.42
2,069.42
128.67
48.05
47.62
9.14
38.48
61.00

Notes
1. Name of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operation - N.A.
2. Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - N.A.

Part “B”: Associates

` in lacs

Statement pursuant to section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associates
Name of Associates
S.no.
1
2

3
4
5
6

Particulars
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
Share of Associates held by the Company on the year end
No. of Shares
Amount of Investment in Associates
Extent of Holding %
Description of how there is signiicant inluence
Reason why the Associate is not consolidated
Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet
Proit/ Loss for the year - Considered in consolidation
- Not Considered in consolidation

PSV Energy Pvt.Ltd.

Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.

31.03.2017

31.03.2017

52000
5.20
26.00%
Holding > 20 %
N.A.

274940
27.49
27.49%
Holding > 20 %
N.A.

0.87
-

27.73
-

Share of proits has not been recognised in carrying amount of investment in associates being not material in value.
1. Associates which are yet to commence operation - N.A.
2. Associates which have been liquidated or sold during the year - N.A.

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
Managing Director
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
Company Secretary
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017
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HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
RAHUL C. KIRLOSKAR
BAKUL JAIN
MAMTA SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Directors

V. RENGASWAMY
Chief Financial Oficer
New Delhi, the 12th May 2017

AROUND THE YEAR

"Rice & Pulses Exhibition at Coimbatore"

“PVCD Exhibition at Chennai”
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NEW PRODUCTS APPLICATION

Agri Vari-Speed Belt
EPDM Banded Belt

Molded Poly V belt

Pendulam
Belt
Pendulam
Auto Tensioner

CVT Scooter Belt
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Vari-Speed Belt

SERVICE TO THE SOCIETY

Inauguration of Individual House Hold Toilets

IHHT Toilets Construction Project

Adult & Inmates Literacy Programs

Books Distribution in Muthangi School

RO Plant at Pocharam Village

Promotion of Olympic & Paralympic Sports
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